

Institute Of Human Virology-Nigeria

**BID DOCUMENT**

National Competitive Bidding

**BID TITTLE: GeneXpert Sites Facility Upgrade**

ITB No.: ITB/IHVN/GF PPM/001/2021

**FACILITY UPGRADE OF GENEXPERT SITES FOR 6 LOTS**

Issued on: 10th May, 2021.

# Abbreviations and Acronyms

* BDS Bid Data Sheet
* CV Curriculum Vitae
* CPT Carriage Paid To
* GF Global Fund
* GFP Ground Fault Protectors
* G Gram
* HSE Health, Safety and Environmental
* IHVN Institute of Human Virology-Nigeria
* ITB Invitation to Bid
* INCOTERM International Commercial Term
* JV Joint Venture
* LOI Letter of Interest
* NGN Nigerian Naira
* N/A Not Applicable
* OFCCP Office of Federal Contract Compliance Program
* SOP Standard Operating Procedures
* PO Purchase Order
* SQ MM Square Meter
* % Percentage

**Contents**

[Abbreviations and Acronyms 2](#_Toc57133544)

[Section I. Letter of Invitation 4](#_Toc57133545)

[Section II. Instruction to Bidders (ITB) 5](#_Toc57133546)

[**A. GENERAL PROVISIONS** 5](#_Toc57133547)

[**B. PREPARATION OF BIDS** 6](#_Toc57133548)

[**C. SUBMISSION AND OPENING OF BIDS** 10](#_Toc57133549)

[**D. EVALUATION OF BIDS** 11](#_Toc57133550)

[**E. AWARD OF CONTRACT** 13](#_Toc57133551)

[Section III. BID DATA SHEET (BDS) 15](#_Toc57133552)

[Section IV. EVALUATION AND QUALIFICATION CRITERIA 18](#_Toc57133553)

[A. Preliminary Evaluation Criteria 18](#_Toc57133554)

[B. Eligibility and Qualification Criteria 18](#_Toc57133555)

[Section V Returnable Bidding Forms 24](#_Toc57133556)

[Section VI Schedule of Requirements 35](#_Toc57133557)

[1. Description of the installation. 35](#_Toc57133558)

[2. List of Goods and Related Services - Technical Specifications. 36](#_Toc57133559)

[Section VII. GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT (GCC) 42](#_Toc57133560)

[Section VIII. Special Conditions of Contract (SCC): 54](#_Toc57133561)

[Section IX. Contract Forms 56](#_Toc57133562)

[Section X. LOTS 60](#_Toc57133563)

[ANNEX 1. Bill of Quantities and Price Schedule 67](#_Toc57133564)

# Section I. Letter of Invitation

The Institute of Human Virology-Nigeria (IHVN) Procurement Unit on behalf of the Institute hereby invites you to submit a Bid to this Invitation to Bid (ITB) for the above-referenced subject.

This ITB includes the following documents:

1. Section I: This Letter of Invitation
2. Section II: Instruction to Bidders
3. Section III: Bid Data Sheet (BDS)
4. Section IV: Evaluation and qualification criteria
5. Section V: Returnable Bidding forms
   1. Form A: Bid Submission Form
   2. Form B: Bidder Information Form
   3. Form C: Joint Venture/Consortium/Association Information Form
   4. Form D: Eligibility and Qualification Forms
   5. Form E: Curriculum Vitae
   6. Format F: Work schedule and planning of deliverables
   7. Form G: Form of Bid Security
   8. Annex I : Completed BoQ / Price Schedule

* Leaflets (documentation) of equipment when appropriate.
* Section VI: Schedule of requirements
* Section VII: General Conditions of Contract
* Section VIII: Special Conditions of Contract
* Section IX: Contract forms
* Section X: Lots

1. Annex I Bill of Quantities and price breakdown.

If you are interested in submitting a Bid in response to this ITB, please prepare your Bid in accordance with the requirements and procedure as set out in this ITB and submit it by the Deadline for Submission of Bids set out in the Bid Data Sheet.

Please acknowledge receipt of this ITB by sending an email to **bids@ihvnigeria.org** indicating whether you intend to submit a Bid or otherwise. Please also indicate the contact person and e-mail address. This will enable you to receive amendments or updates and clarifications to the ITB. Should you require further clarifications, kindly communicate with the contact person/s identified in the attached Data Sheet as the focal point for queries on this ITB.

IHVN looks forward to receiving your Bid and thank you in advance for your interest in IHVN procurement opportunities.

|  |  |  |  |
| --- | --- | --- | --- |
| Issued by |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |
| Name: Opute Ifeoma  Title: DD Procurement  Date: 10th May, 2021. |  | |

# Section II. Instruction to Bidders (ITB)

|  |  |
| --- | --- |
| **A. GENERAL PROVISIONS** | |
| 1. Introduction | * 1. Bidders shall adhere to all the requirements of this ITB, including any amendments made in writing by IHVN. This ITB is conducted in accordance with International Standard Practice. |
| * 1. Any Bid submitted will be regarded as an offer by the Bidder and does not constitute or imply the acceptance of the Bid by IHVN. The Institute is under no obligation to award a contract to any Bidder as a result of this ITB. |
| * 1. IHVN reserves the right to cancel the procurement process at any stage without any liability of any kind for IHVN, upon notice to the bidders or publication of cancellation notice on IHVN website. |
| * 1. As part of the bid, it is desired that the Bidder registers with the Institute through the legal unit. The Bidder may still submit a bid even if not registered with the Institute. However, if the Bidder is selected for contract award, the Bidder must register with IHVN prior to contract signature. |
| 1. Fraud & Corruption, Gifts and Hospitality | * 1. IHVN strictly enforces a policy of zero tolerance on proscribed practices, including fraud, corruption, collusion, unethical or unprofessional practices, and obstruction of IHVN vendors and requires all bidders/vendors to observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement process and contract implementation.   IHVN’s Anti-Fraud email: [speakout@ihvnigeria.org](file:///C:\Users\idowuo.IHVNIGERIA\Downloads\speakout@ihvnigeria.org) can be reached at all times to report any foul play at any level. |
| * 1. Bidders/vendors shall not offer gifts or hospitality of any kind to IHVN staff members including recreational trips to sporting or cultural events, theme parks or offers of holidays, transportation, or invitations to extravagant lunches or dinners. |
| * 1. In pursuance of this policy, IHVN:  1. Shall reject a bid if it determines that the selected bidder has engaged in any corrupt or fraudulent practices in competing for the contract in question. 2. Shall declare a vendor ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period, to be awarded a contract if at any time it determines that the vendor has engaged in any corrupt or fraudulent practices in competing for, or in executing an IHVN contract. |
| * 1. All Bidders must adhere to the Global Fund Supplier Code of Conduct, which may be found at:   <https://www.theglobalfund.org/media/3275/corporate_codeofconductforsuppliers_policy_en.pdf> |
| 1. Eligibility | * 1. A vendor cannot participate in IHVN tenders if they are suspended, debarred, or otherwise identified as ineligible by IHVN, GF, OFCCP or any other international Organization. Vendors are therefore required to disclose to IHVN whether they are subject to any sanction or temporary suspension imposed by these organizations. |
| * 1. It is the Bidder’s responsibility to ensure that its employees, joint venture members, sub-contractors, service providers, suppliers and/or their employees meet the eligibility requirements as established by IHVN in Section 6. |
| 1. Conflict of Interests | * 1. Bidders must strictly avoid conflicts with other assignments or their own interests, and act without consideration for future work. Bidders found to have a conflict of interest shall be disqualified. Without limitation on the generality of the above, Bidders, and any of their affiliates, shall be considered to have a conflict of interest with one or more parties in this solicitation process, if they:  1. Are or have been associated in the past 6 months, with a firm or any of its affiliates which have been engaged by IHVN to provide services for the preparation of the design, specifications, Terms of Reference, cost analysis/estimation, and other documents to be used for the procurement of the goods and services in this selection process; 2. Were involved in the preparation and/or design of the programme/project related to the goods and/or services requested under this ITB; or 3. Are found to be in conflict for any other reason, as may be established by, and at the discretion of IHVN |
| * 1. In the event of any uncertainty in the interpretation of a potential conflict of interest, Bidders must disclose to IHVN, and seek the Institute’s confirmation on whether or not such conflict exists. |
| * 1. Similarly, Bidders must disclose in their Bid their knowledge of the following:  1. If the owners, part-owners, officers, directors, controlling shareholders, of the bidding entity or key personnel are family members of IHVN staff involved in the procurement functions and/or the Government of the country or any Implementing Partner receiving goods and/or services under this ITB; and 2. All other circumstances that could potentially lead to actual or perceived conflict of interest, collusion or unfair competition practices.   Failure to disclose such information may result in the rejection of the Bid or Bids affected by the non-disclosure. |
| * 1. The eligibility of Bidders that are wholly or partly owned by the Government shall be subject to IHVN’s further evaluation and review of various factors such as being registered, operated and managed as an independent business entity, the extent of Government ownership/share, receipt of subsidies, mandate and access to information in relation to this ITB, among others. Conditions that may lead to undue advantage against other Bidders may result in the eventual rejection of the Bid. |
| **B. PREPARATION OF BIDS** | |
| 1. General Considerations | * 1. In preparing the Bid, the Bidder is expected to examine the Bidding Documents in detail. Material deficiencies in providing information requested in the document or its annexes may result in rejection of the Bid. |
| * 1. The Bidder will not be permitted to take advantage of any errors or omissions in the documents. Should such errors or omissions be discovered, the Bidder must notify the IHVN accordingly. |
| 1. Cost of Preparation of Bid | * 1. The Bidder shall bear all costs related to the preparation and/or submission of the Bid, regardless of whether its Bid is selected or not. IHVN shall not be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the procurement process. |
| 1. Language | * 1. The Bid, as well as any and all related correspondence exchanged by the Bidder and IHVN, shall be written in English. |
| 1. Documents Comprising the Bid | * 1. The Bid shall comprise of the following documents and related forms which details are provided in the **BDS:**  1. Documents Establishing the Eligibility and Qualifications of the Bidder; 2. Technical Bid; 3. Price Schedule; 4. Any attachments and/or appendices to the Bid. |
| 1. Documents Establishing the Eligibility and Qualifications of the Bidder | * 1. The Bidder shall furnish documentary evidence of its status as an eligible and qualified vendor, using the Forms provided under Section IX and providing documents required in those forms. In order to award a contract to a Bidder, its qualifications must be documented to IHVN’s satisfaction. |
| 1. Technical Bid Format and Content | * 1. The Bidder is required to submit a Technical Bid using the Standard Forms and templates provided in Section IX of the ITB. |
| * 1. Samples of items, when required as per Section 4, shall be provided within the time specified and unless otherwise specified by the Purchaser, at no expense to IHVN. If not destroyed by testing, samples will be returned at Bidder’s request and expense, unless otherwise specified. |
| * 1. When applicable and required as per Section 4, the Bidder shall describe the necessary training programme available for the maintenance and operation of the equipment offered as well as the cost to the IHVN. Unless otherwise specified, such training as well as training materials shall be provided in the language of the Bid as specified in the BDS. |
| * 1. When applicable and required in the **BDS**, the Bidder shall certify the availability of spare parts for a period of at least five (5) years from date of delivery, or as otherwise specified in this ITB. |
| 1. Price Schedule | * 1. The Price Schedule shall be prepared using the **BOQ** and taking into consideration the requirements in the ITB. |
| * 1. Any requirement described in the Technical Bid but not priced in the Price Schedule, shall be assumed to be included in the prices of other activities or items, as well as in the final total price. |
| 1. Bid Security | * 1. A Bid Security, if required by **BDS**, shall be provided in the amount and form indicated in the **BDS**. The Bid Security shall be valid for a minimum of thirty (30) days after the final date of validity of the Bid. |
| * 1. The Bid Security shall be included along with the Bid. If a Bid Security is required by the BDS but is not found in the Bid, the offer shall be rejected. |
| * 1. If the Bid Security amount or its validity period is found to be less than what is required by IHVN, the Institute may reject the Bid. |
| * 1. In the event an electronic submission is allowed in the **BDS**, Bidders shall include a copy of the Bid Security in their bid and the original of the Bid Security must be sent via courier or hand delivery as per the instructions in **BDS**. |
| * 1. The Bid Security may be forfeited by IHVN, and the Bid rejected, in the event of any, or a combination, of the following conditions:  1. If the Bidder withdraws its offer during the period of the Bid Validity specified in the BDS, or; 2. In the event the successful Bidder fails: 3. to sign the Contract after IHVN has issued an award; or 4. to furnish the Performance Security, insurances, or other documents that IHVN may require as a condition precedent to the effectivity of the contract that may be awarded to the Bidder. |
| 1. Currencies | * 1. Bids can be expressed in NGN |
| 1. Joint Venture, Consortium or Association | * 1. If the Bidder is a group of legal entities that will form or have formed a Joint Venture (JV), Consortium or Association for the Bid, they shall confirm in their Bid that : * they have designated one party to act as a lead entity, duly vested with authority to legally bind the members of the JV, Consortium or Association jointly and severally, which shall be evidenced by a duly notarized Agreement among the legal entities, and submitted with the Bid; and * if they are awarded the contract, the contract shall be entered into, by and between IHVN and the designated lead entity, who shall be acting for and on behalf of all the member entities comprising the joint venture. |
| * 1. After the Deadline for Submission of Bid, the lead entity identified to represent the JV, Consortium or Association shall not be altered without the prior written consent of IHVN. |
| * 1. The description of the organization of the JV, Consortium or Association must clearly define the expected role of each of the entities in the joint venture in delivering the requirements of the ITB, both in the Bid and the JV, Consortium or Association Agreement. All entities that comprise the JV, Consortium or Association shall be subject to the eligibility and qualification assessment by IHVN as stated in section IV. |
| * 1. A JV, Consortium or Association, in presenting its track record and experience should clearly differentiate between:  1. Those that were undertaken together by the JV, Consortium or Association; and 2. Those that were undertaken by the individual entities of the JV, Consortium or Association. |
| * 1. Previous contracts completed by individual experts working privately but who are permanently or were temporarily associated with any of the member firms cannot be claimed as the experience of the JV, Consortium or Association or those of its members, but should only be claimed by the individual experts themselves in their presentation of their individual credentials. |
| * 1. JVs, Consortia or Associations are encouraged for high value, multi-sectoral requirements when the spectrum of expertise and resources required may not be available within one firm. |
| 1. Only One Bid | * 1. The Bidder (including the individual members of any Joint Venture) shall submit only one Bid, either in its own name or as part of a Joint Venture. |
| * 1. Bids submitted by two (2) or more Bidders shall all be rejected if they are found to have any of the following:  1. they have at least one controlling partner, director or shareholder in common; or 2. any one of them receives or has received any direct or indirect subsidy from the other/s; or 3. they have the same legal representative for purposes of this ITB; or 4. they have a relationship with each other, directly or through common third parties, that puts them in a position to have access to information about, or influence on the Bid of another Bidder regarding this ITB process; 5. they are subcontractors to each other’s Bid, or a subcontractor to one Bid also submits another Bid under its name as lead Bidder; or some key personnel proposed to be in the team of one Bidder participates in more than one Bid received for this ITB process. This condition relating to the personnel, does not apply to subcontractors being included in more than one bid. |
| 1. Bid Validity Period | * 1. Bids shall remain valid for the period specified in the **BDS**, commencing on the Deadline for Submission of Bids. A Bid valid for a shorter period may be rejected by IHVN and rendered non-responsive. |
| * 1. During the Bid validity period, the Bidder shall maintain its original Bid without any change, including the availability of the Key Personnel, the proposed rates and the total price. |
| 1. Extension of Bid Validity Period | * 1. In exceptional circumstances, prior to the expiration of the Bid validity period, IHVN may request Bidders to extend the period of validity of their Bids. The request and the responses shall be made in writing and shall be considered integral to the Bid. |
| * 1. If the Bidder agrees to extend the validity of its Bid, it shall be done without any change to the original Bid. |
| * 1. The Bidder has the right to refuse to extend the validity of its Bid, in which case, the Bid shall not be further evaluated and the bid security, if any, returned. |
| 1. Clarification of Bid (from the Bidders) | * 1. Bidders may request clarifications on any of the ITB documents no later than the date **indicated in the BDS**. Any request for clarification must be sent in writing in the manner **indicated in the BDS**. If inquiries are sent other than specified channel, even if they are sent to an IHVN staff member, the Institute shall have no obligation to respond or confirm that the query was officially received. |
| * 1. IHVN will provide the responses to clarifications through the method **specified in the BDS**. |
| * 1. IHVN shall endeavour to provide responses to clarifications in an expeditious manner, but any delay in such response shall not cause an obligation on the part of IHVN to extend the submission date of the Bids, unless the Institute deems that such an extension is justified and necessary. |
| 1. Amendment | * 1. At any time prior to the deadline of Bid submission, IHVN may for any reason, such as in response to a clarification requested by a Bidder, modify the ITB in the form of an amendment to the ITB. Amendments will be made available to all prospective bidders. |
| * 1. If the amendment is substantial, IHVN may extend the Deadline for submission of Bid to give the Bidders reasonable time to incorporate the amendment into their Bids. |
| 1. Alternative Bids | * 1. Unless otherwise specified in the BDS, alternative Bids shall not be considered. If submission of alternative Bid is allowed by **BDS**, a Bidder may submit an alternative Bid, but only if it also submits a Bid conforming to the ITB requirements. Where the conditions for its acceptance are met, or justifications are clearly established, IHVN reserves the right to award a contract based on an alternative Bid. |
| * 1. If multiple/alternative bids are being submitted, they must be clearly marked as “Main Bid” and “Alternative Bid” |
| 1. Pre-Bid Conference | * 1. When appropriate, a pre-bid conference will be conducted at the date, time and location **specified in the BDS**. All Bidders are encouraged to attend. Non-attendance however, shall not result in disqualification of an interested Bidder. Minutes of the Bidder’s conference will be disseminated on the IHVN website and shared by email **as specified in the BDS**. No verbal statement made during the conference shall modify the terms and conditions of the ITB, unless specifically incorporated in the Minutes of the Bidder’s Conference or issued/posted as an amendment to ITB. |
| **C. SUBMISSION AND OPENING OF BIDS** | |
| 1. Submission | * 1. The Bidder shall submit a duly signed and complete Bid comprising the documents and forms in accordance with requirements in the **BDS**. The Price Schedule shall be submitted together with the Technical Bid. Bids can be delivered either personally, by courier, or by electronic method of transmission as specified in the **BDS**. |
| * 1. The Bid shall be signed by the Bidder or person(s) duly authorized to commit the Bidder. The authorization shall be communicated through a document evidencing such authorization issued by the legal representative of the bidding entity, or a Power of Attorney, accompanying the Bid. |
| * 1. Bidders must be aware that the mere act of submission of a Bid, in and of itself, implies that the Bidder fully accepts the IHVN General Contract Terms and Conditions. |
| Hard copy submission | * 1. Hard copy submission by courier or hand delivery allowed or specified in the BDS shall be governed as follows:  1. The signed Bid shall be marked “Original”, and its copies marked “Copy” as appropriate. The number of copies is **indicated in the BDS**. All copies shall be made from the signed original only. If there are discrepancies between the original and the copies, the original shall prevail. 2. The Technical Bid and Price Schedule must be sealed and submitted together in an envelope, which shall: 3. Bear the name of the Bidder; 4. Be addressed to IHVN **as specified in the BDS**; and 5. Bear a warning not to open before the time and date for Bid opening **as specified in the BDS.**   Warning:  If the envelope with the Bid is not sealed and marked as required, IHVN shall assume no responsibility for the misplacement, loss, or premature opening of the Bid.  Please also note the following instructions for preparation of the Proposal:   1. Dividers may be used to separate sections of the document, if needed. 2. All pages of the proposal shall be numbered in the format **'Page X of Y'**. 3. All copies of the proposal shall be typed or written in indelible ink and shall be signed by a person or persons duly authorized to represent the bidder, submit a proposal and bind the bidder to the terms of the RFP. A proposal shall contain no interlineations, erasures, or overwriting except, as necessary to correct errors made by the bidder, in which case such corrections shall be initialled by the person or persons signing the proposal. 4. The electronic copy of the proposal and supporting documents on the flash drive should be in PDF, or MS Word compatible format. The Responses to the Requirements should be submitted in the XLS file format supplied by IHVN and using the template distributed with the RFP. The Financial Proposal should be submitted in the XLS file format supplied by IHVN and using the template distributed with the RFP. The Proposed Timeline project plan should be either in MS Project MPP, XLS or PDF format. |
| Email submissions | * 1. Electronic submission through email, if allowed as specified in the BDS, shall be governed as follows:  1. Electronic files that form part of the Bid must be in accordance with the format and requirements indicated in **BDS**; 2. Documents which are required to be in original form (e.g. Bid Security, etc.) must be sent via courier or hand delivered as per the instructions in **BDS**. |
| 1. Deadline for Submission of Bids and Late Bids | * 1. Complete Bids must be received by IHVN in the manner, and no later than the date and time, **specified in the BDS**. IHVN shall only recognize the actual date and time that the bid was received by IHVN. |
| * 1. IHVN shall not consider any Bid that is received after the deadline for the submission of Bids. |
| 1. Withdrawal, Substitution, and Modification of Bids | * 1. A Bidder may withdraw, substitute or modify its Bid after it has been submitted at any time prior to the deadline for submission. |
| * 1. A bidder may withdraw, substitute or modify its Bid by sending a written notice to IHVN, duly signed by an authorized representative, and shall include a copy of the authorization (or a Power of Attorney). The corresponding substitution or modification of the Bid, if any, must accompany the respective written notice. All notices must be submitted in the same manner as specified for submission of Bids, by clearly marking them as “WITHDRAWAL” “SUBSTITUTION,” or “MODIFICATION” |
| * 1. Bids requested to be withdrawn shall be returned unopened to the Bidders except if the bid is withdrawn after the bid has been opened. |
| * 1. Bidders are not allowed to submit Bids for Parts or sub- parts of the Schedule of Requirements (partial bids) |
| 1. Bid Opening | * 1. IHVN will open the Bid in the presence of Bid committee formed by IHVN of at least two (2) members |
| * 1. The Bidders’ names, modifications, withdrawals, the condition of the envelope labels/seals, the number of folders/files, Bid prices and all other such other details as IHVN may consider appropriate, will be announced at the opening. No Bid shall be rejected at the opening stage, except for late submissions, in which case, the Bid shall be returned unopened to the Bidders. |
| **D. EVALUATION OF BIDS** | |
| 1. Confidentiality | * 1. Information relating to the examination, evaluation, and comparison of Bids, and the recommendation of contract award, shall not be disclosed to Bidders or any other persons not officially concerned with such process, even after award of the contract. |
| * 1. Any effort by a Bidder or anyone on behalf of the Bidder to influence IHVN in the examination, evaluation and comparison of the Bids or contract award decisions may, at IHVN’s decision, result in the rejection of its Bid and may subsequently be subject to the application of prevailing IHVN’s vendor sanctions procedures. |
| 1. Evaluation of Bids | * 1. IHVN will conduct the evaluation solely on the basis of the Bids received. |
| * 1. Evaluation of Bids shall be undertaken in the following steps:  1. Preliminary Examination including Eligibility 2. Arithmetical check and ranking of bidders by price who passed preliminary examination. 3. Qualification assessment (if pre-qualification was not done) 4. Respect of technical specifications and other criteria stated in these bidding documents.   Detailed evaluation will be focused on the three (3) lowest priced bids. Further higher priced bids shall be added for evaluation if necessary. |
| 1. Preliminary Examination | * 1. IHVN shall examine the Bids to determine whether they are substantially complete with respect to minimum documentary requirements, whether the documents have been properly signed, and whether the Bids are generally in order, among other indicators that may be used at this stage. IHVN reserves the right to reject any Bid at this stage. |
| 1. Evaluation of Eligibility and Qualification | * 1. Eligibility and Qualification of the Bidder will be evaluated against the Minimum Eligibility/Qualification requirements specified in the Section IV (Evaluation and Eligibility Criteria). |
| 1. Evaluation of Technical Bid and prices | * 1. The evaluation team shall review and evaluate the Technical Bids on the basis of their substantially responsiveness to the Schedule of Requirements and Technical Specifications and other criteria stated, applying the **procedure indicated in the BDS** and other ITB documents. When necessary, and if **stated in the BDS**, IHVN may invite technically responsive bidders for a presentation related to their technical Bids. The conditions for the presentation shall be provided in the bid document where required. |
| 1. Due diligence | * 1. IHVN reserves the right to undertake a due diligence exercise, aimed at determining to its satisfaction, the validity of the information provided by the Bidder. Such exercise shall be fully documented and may include, but need not be limited to, all or any combination of the following:  1. Verification of accuracy, correctness and authenticity of information provided by the Bidder; 2. Validation of the extent of compliance to the ITB requirements and evaluation criteria based on what has so far been found by the evaluation team; 3. Inquiry and reference checking with Government entities with jurisdiction on the Bidder, or with previous clients, or any other entity that may have done business with the Bidder; 4. Inquiry and reference checking with previous clients on the performance of on-going or completed contracts, including physical inspections of previous works, as deemed necessary; 5. Physical inspection of the Bidder’s offices, branches or other places where business transpires, with or without notice to the Bidder; 6. Other means that IHVN may deem appropriate, at any stage within the selection process, prior to awarding the contract |
| 1. Clarification of Bids | * 1. To assist in the examination, evaluation and comparison of Bids, IHVN may, at its discretion, request any Bidder for a clarification of its Bid. |
| * 1. IHVN’s request for clarification and the response shall be in writing and no change in the prices or substance of the Bid shall be sought, offered, or permitted, except to provide clarification, and confirm the correction of any arithmetic errors discovered by IHVN in the evaluation of the Bids, in accordance with the ITB. |
| * 1. Any unsolicited clarification submitted by a Bidder in respect to its Bid, which is not a response to a request by IHVN, shall not be considered during the review and evaluation of the Bids. |
| 1. Responsiveness of Bid | * 1. IHVN’s determination of a Bid’s responsiveness will be based on the contents of the bid itself. A substantially responsive Bid is one that conforms to all the terms, conditions, specifications and other requirements of the ITB without material deviation, reservation, or omission. |
| * 1. If a bid is not substantially responsive, it shall be rejected by IHVN and may not subsequently be made responsive by the Bidder by correction of the material deviation, reservation, or omission. |
| 1. Nonconformities, Reparable Errors and Omissions | * 1. Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, IHVN may waive any non- conformities or omissions in the Bid that, in the opinion of IHVN, do not constitute a material deviation. |
| * 1. IHVN may request the Bidder to submit the necessary information or documentation, within a reasonable period, to rectify nonmaterial nonconformities or omissions in the Bid related to documentation requirements. Such omission shall not be related to any aspect of the price of the Bid. Failure of the Bidder to comply with the request may result in the rejection of its Bid. |
| * 1. For the bids that have passed the preliminary examination, IHVN shall check, and correct arithmetical errors as follows:  1. if there is a discrepancy between the unit price and the line item total that is obtained by multiplying the unit price by the quantity, the unit price shall prevail and the line item total shall be corrected, unless in the opinion of IHVN there is an obvious misplacement of the decimal point in the unit price; in which case, the line item total as quoted shall govern and the unit price shall be corrected; 2. if there is an error in a total corresponding to the addition or subtraction of subtotals, the subtotals shall prevail, and the total shall be corrected; and 3. if there is a discrepancy between words and figures, the amount in words shall prevail, unless the amount expressed in words is related to an arithmetic error, in which case the amount in figures shall prevail. |
| * 1. If the Bidder does not accept the correction of errors made by IHVN, its Bid shall be rejected. |
| **E. AWARD OF CONTRACT** | |
| 1. Right to Accept, Reject, Any or All Bids | * 1. IHVN reserves the right to accept or reject any bid, to render any or all of the bids as non-responsive, and to reject all Bids at any time prior to award of contract, without incurring any liability, or obligation to inform the affected Bidder(s) of the grounds for IHVN’s action. The Institute shall not be obliged to award the contract to the lowest priced offer. |
| 1. Award Criteria | * 1. Prior to expiration of the period of Bid validity, IHVN shall award the contract to the qualified and eligible Bidder(s) that is/are found to be responsive of all conditions in the Bidding Document, the Schedule of Requirements and has/have the lowest price.. |
| 1. Debriefing | * 1. If a Bidder is unsuccessful, the Bidder may request for a debriefing from IHVN. The purpose of the debriefing is to discuss the strengths and weaknesses of the Bidder’s submission, in order to assist the Bidder in improving its future Bids for IHVN procurement opportunities. The content of other Bids and how they compare to the Bidder’s submission shall not be discussed. |
| 1. Right to Vary Requirements at the Time of Award | * 1. At the time of award of Contract, IHVN reserves the right to vary the quantity of goods and/or services, by up to a maximum twenty-five per cent (25%) of the total offer, without any change in the unit price or other terms and conditions. |
| 1. Contract Signature | * 1. Within fifteen (15) days from the date of receipt of the Contract, the successful Bidder shall sign and date the Contract and return it to IHVN. Failure to do so may constitute sufficient grounds for the annulment of the award, and forfeiture of the Bid Security, if any, and on which event, IHVN may award the Contract to the Second highest rated or call for new Bids. |
| 1. . Contract Type and General Terms and Conditions | * 1. The type of Contract to be signed and the applicable IHVN Contract General Terms and Conditions, as specified in **BDS**. |
| 1. Performance Security | * 1. A performance security, if required in the **BDS**, shall be provided in the amount specified in BDS. Where a performance security is required, the receipt of the performance security by IHVN shall be a condition for rendering the contract effective. |
| 1. Bank Guarantee/Insurance Bond for Advanced Payment | * 1. It is IHVN’s standard practice to **not** make advance payment(s) (i.e., payments without having received any outputs), except in a situation where the Bidder request in writing to request for advance payment and the Bidder shall submit a Bank Guarantee from a reputable bank in the full amount of the advance payment requested. |
| 1. Liquidated Damages | * 1. If specified in the **BDS**, IHVN shall apply Liquidated Damages for the damages and/or risks caused to the Institute resulting from the Contractor’s delays or breach of its obligations as per Contract. |
| 1. Payment Provisions | * 1. Payment will be made only upon IHVN's acceptance of the goods and/or services performed. The terms of payment shall be within two weeks, after receipt of invoice and certification of acceptance of goods and/or services issued by the proper authority in IHVN with direct supervision of the Contractor. Payment will be affected by bank transfer in the currency or currencies of the contract. |
| 1. Vendor Protest | * 1. IHVN’s vendor protest procedure provides an opportunity for appeal to those persons or firms not awarded a contract through a competitive procurement process. In the event that a Bidder believes that it was not treated fairly. This should be done through official letter to the CEO of the Institute. |
| 1. Contract Duration | * 1. The duration of the contract shall be as specified in the **BDS**. |

# Section III. BID DATA SHEET (BDS)

The following data for the goods and/or services to be procured shall complement, supplement, or amend the provisions in Section II, Instructions to Bidders. In case of conflict between the Instructions to Bidders, the Bid Data Sheet, and other annexes or references attached to this Bidding Document, the provisions in the Bid Data Sheet shall prevail.

| ITB Article | Specific Instructions |
| --- | --- |
| 1.4 Bidder registers with the Institute | Not applicable |
| 8.1 Bidding documents | The required documents are listed in Section V |
| 10.2 Samples | No samples are required. |
| 10.3 Description of required training | Not applicable |
| 10.4 Spare parts | Not applicable |
| 11.1 Price Schedule | As stated in the BOQ. Price schedules are to be submitted **per lot.** |
| 12.1 Bid Security | A bid security is required. |
| 12.1 Value of bid security | The value of the bid security is NGN 1,000,000 / LOT.  The maximum amount for the bid security (for multiple lots) is NGN 5,000,000. |
| 12.4 E-submission of bids | Electronic submission of bids is not allowed. |
| 13.1 Currency of bids | Bids must be expressed in NGN |
| 16.1 Bid validity period | The bid validity period will be 90 days, starting from the date of deadline for submission of the bids. |
| 18.1 Deadline for submitting requests for clarifications/ questions | 7 calendar days before the submission deadline.  Requests for clarifications will be sent by e-mail to:  [bids@ihvnigeria.org](mailto:bids@ihvnigeria.org) |
| 18.2 Dissemination of supplemental information and clarifications to queries. | Will be sent by Email to the contact person stated in the confirmation that the company will submit a bid. (See Letter of Invitation). |
| 18.3 Mode of response to bid clarification | All questions and their answers will be sent to all registered bidders by e-mail, at the latest 7 calendar days before the deadline for bid submission. The name of the companies, requesting the clarifications will not be mentioned |
| 19.1 Bid amendment | Amendments, if any, will be sent by e-mail to all registered bidders. |
| 20.1 Alternative bids | Allowed |
| 21.1 Pre-bid conference | No pre-bid conference or site visits will be organized |
| 22.4.a Number of copies to be submitted | 1. In addition to the two hard copies (one original and one photocopy), bidders will provide an electronic copy of their bid in PDF and/or Excel format on a Flash Drive. Flash drive containing electronic copy of proposal and supporting documents (clearly labelled with company name) |
| 22.4.b (ii) Address for Bid Submission | Your Bid must be submitted in our bid box located at the address:  INSTITUTE OF HUMAN VIROLOGY, NIGERIA  Pent House, Maina Courts, Plot 252, Herbert Macaulay Way, Central Business District, Abuja, Nigeria. |
| 22.5 Allowable Manner of Submitting Bids | Electronic submission is not allowed. Courier/Hand Delivery only. |
| 23.1 Deadline for Bid Submission | Bids need to be submitted on or before 28th May, 2021 at 10AM (Local time in Nigeria). |
| 24.4 Partial bids. | Bids will be per lot.  Bidders can bid for one or multiple lots.  Partial Bids for any Lot are NOT allowed and will be rejected. |
| 27.2 Bid evaluation | The Purchaser shall evaluate each bid that has been determined, up to this stage of the evaluation, to be substantially responsive.  Evaluation will be done by LOT whereby 1 Geopolitical zone = 1 lot  Bidders may indicate cross discounts (by number of facility upgrade) in case they are awarded multiple lots.  Contract(s) will be awarded to the bidder(s) with the lowest price **per lot** while still substantially complying with all requirements of this bidding document.  Bidders are requested to indicate the maximum number of lots they are willing and/or capable to execute in terms of capacity, staff, etc. within the specified maximum execution time.  If a Price Schedule shows items listed but not priced, their prices shall be assumed to be included in the prices of other items. An item not listed in the Price Schedule shall be assumed to be not included in the bid, and provided that the bid is substantially responsive, the average price of the item quoted by substantially responsive bidders will be added to the bid price and the equivalent total cost of the bid so determined will be used for price comparison. |
| 30.1 Presentation | No presentation will be required. |
| 36.1 Contract award | Contract(s) will be awarded to the bidder(s) with the lowest price per lot while still complying with all requirements of this bidding document after applying possible cross discounts. |
| 40.1 Type of contract | Fixed price Contract for Goods and related services. |
| 41.1 Performance security | A performance security of **4 %** of the contract value will be required. |
| 42.1 Advance Payment | Advance payment of 30 % of the value of the contract is allowed upon request and at the presentation of a Bank Guarantee from a reputable bank for the same amount. |
| 43.1 Liquidated Damages | Will be imposed under the following conditions: Percentage of contract price per day of delay: 0.5%.[[1]](#footnote-1)  Max. of applicable penalty: 10% of contract value  Delays and damages will be calculated by lot if multiple lots have been awarded to the same bidder.  Once the total value of the liquidated damages has reached 10 %, the purchaser has the right to terminate the contract and claim the performance guarantee. |
| 46.1 Expected date for commencement of Contract | 4th June, 2021. |
| 46.1 Maximum duration of contract | 27 calendar days [[2]](#footnote-2) |

# List of Health Facilities and their States

**Lot 1**

|  |  |  |  |
| --- | --- | --- | --- |
| **S/N** | **Geo Political Zone** | **State** | **Health Facilities** |
|  |  |  | **LOT** |
| 1 | **North central** | **Niger** | MEDICAL MISSIONARY OF MARY FUKA |
| 2 | **-** | **Niger** | PPM- MEDICAL MISSIONARY OF MERIT IN MUNYA LGA |
| 3 | **-** | **Plateau** | wuyep SPEDIALIST HOSPITAL JOS SOUTH |
| 4 | **-** | **Plateau** | NANEL LAB JOS NORTH |
| 5 |  | **Plateau** | GH Dangi |
| 6 |  | **Kwara** | GH OMUARAN |
| **LOT 2** | | | |
| 7 | **North west** | **Zamfara** | ANKA ZAMFARA |
| 8 |  | **SOKOTO** | GH YABO |
| 9 |  | **Sokoto** | IDH Amanawa |
| 10 | **-** | **Kaduna** | DNA laboratories ltd |
| 11 | **-** | **Kaduna** | GH Gwantu |
| 12 | **-** | **Kaduna** | GH kaura |
| 13 | **-** | **Kaduna** | GH Makarfi |
| 14 | **-** | **Kaduna** | GH Rigasa |
| 15 | **-** | **Kaduna** | Virtual Hospital |
| 16 |  | **Kebbi** | SIR YAHAYA MEMORIAL HOSPITAL |
| 17 |  | **Katsina** | GH BAURE |
| 18 | **-** | **Katsina** | Gen Hospital Mani |
| 19 | **-** | **Katsina** | Gen Hospital Musawa |
| 20 | **-** | **Katsina** | General Amadi rimi Specialist (GARSH) |
| 21 | **-** | **Kano** | PPM-PAN CARE MEDICAL DIAGNOSTIC CENTER ALONG MURTALA MUHAMMAD WAY |
| 22 | **-** | **Kano** | NEW SITE- ARMED FORCES SPECIALIST HOSPITAL, KANO |
| 23 |  | **Kano** | GH DAWAKINKUDU |
| 24 | **-** | **Kano** | GH DANBATA |
| 25 | **-** | **Kano** | PPM- KLINCHEX DIAGNOSTIC CENTRE 3 BUK ROAD KANO |
| 26 | **-** | **Jigawa** | SAMBO HOSPITAL LTD JIGAWA |
| **LOT 3** | | | |
| 27 | **North East** | **Bauchi** | GH DAMBAM |
| 28 | **-** | **Bauchi** | GH AZARE |
| 29 | **-** | **Bauchi** | GH SHIRA |
| 30 |  | **Bauchi** | CPHC Tashan Babiye |
| 31 | **-** | **Borno** | BEN MED LAB |
| 32 |  | **Borno** | 7 DIV HOSPITAL BORNO |
| 33 |  | **Borno** | BEN MED LAB |
| 34 |  | **Borno** | 7 DIV HOSPITAL BORNO |
| 35 | **-** | **Taraba** | UMCN HOSPITAL JALINGO |
| 36 | **-** | **Adamawa** | OPTIMUM LAB |
| 37 | **-** | **Gombe** | GH DUKKU |
| 38 | **-** | **Gombe** | Bio-Global Diagnostic & Research laboratory |
| 39 | **-** | **Yobe** | Yobe State University Teaching Hospital |
| **LOT 4** | | | |
| 40 | **South South** | **Edo** | SAINT CAMILLUS CATHOLIC HOSPITAL UROMI |
| 41 | **-** | **Edo** | GENERAL HOSPITAL ABUDU EDO |
| 42 | **-** | **Delta** | GH Ogwashi Ukwu |
| 43 |  | **Delta** | GH Ozoro |
| 44 | **-** | **Delta** | Our Lady of Nigeria Catholic Hospital |
| 45 | **-** | **Delta** | El-Comfort Hospital Bonsaac Asaba |
| 46 | **-** | **Rivers** | BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTRE OKEHI |
| 47 |  | **Rivers** | GENERAL HOSPITAL BONNY |
| 48 | **-** | **Rivers** | DE-INTEGRATED MED RESEARCH LAB RIVERS |
| 49 |  | **Rivers** | Compehensive Health Center Oyigbo |
| 50 | **-** | **Cross River** | NEW SITE-COMPREHENSIVE HEALTH CENTRE BOKI |
| 51 | **-** | **AkwaIbom** | PPM- STREAM TRUST |
| **LOT 5** | | | |
| 52 | **South East** | **Enugu** | LONA LAB ENUGU STATE |
| 53 | **-** | **Enugu** | OUR lady Help of the Sick Adani |
| 54 | **-** | **Anambra** | GH Ajalli |
| 55 | **-** | **Anambra** | FBO-IYIENU MISSION HOSPITAL IDEMILI NORTH |
| 56 | **-** | **Anambra** | Rank Diagnostics laboratory, Iyiowa Odekpe |
| 57 | **-** | **Imo** | PPM-EVERIGHT LAB OWERRI |
| 58 | **-** | **Imo** | NEW SITE- GH OHAJI EGBEMA |
| 59 |  | **Imo** | IMACULATE HEART HOSPITAL |
| 60 | **-** | **Ebonyi** | Touch Diagnostics |
| 61 | **-** | **Abia** | Global health Laoratories |
| 62 |  | **Abia** | Nkechi colwill hospital Uzuakoli |
| **LOT 6** | | | |
| 63 | **South West** | **Oyo** | PPM- MUSLIM HOSPITAL KISHI |
| 64 | **-** | **Oyo** | PPM- D- AL-AMEEN MEDICAL DIAGNOSTIC CENTRE, IBADAN |
| 65 |  | **Oyo** | PPM- OUR LADY HOSPITAL ISEYIN |
| 66 | **-** | **Oyo** | ADEOYO MATERNITY IBADAN NORTH |
| 67 | **-** | **Oyo** | PPM- OUR LADY HOSPITAL OLUYORO OKEOFA, IBADAN |
| 68 | **-** | **Oyo** | PPM-OLUGBON MEDICAL CENTRE IGBOORA |
| 69 | **-** | **Ogun** | Agbado Health Centre, Ifo LGA, |
| 70 |  | **Ogun** | Ariset Specialist Hospital, Atan, Ado Odo/Ota LGA |
| 71 |  | **Ogun** | GH IBIADE |
| 72 |  | **Ogun** | NEW SITE- GH IJEBU IGBO |
| 73 |  | **Ondo** | IDH PUBLIC LABI |
| 74 |  | **Ondo** | DAUGHTER OF CHARITY AKURE |
| 75 |  | **Ondo** | IGBOKODA GH ONDO STATE |
| 76 |  | **Osun** | VICTORY HOSPITAL OSUN STATE |
| 77 |  | **Lagos** | HEALTH AFFAIRS DIAGNOSTIC LTD |
| 78 |  | **Lagos** | GH IJEDE LAGOS |
| 79 |  | **Lagos** | FUNTOM MED DIAGNOSTIC |

This means bidders can only submit a bid for a number of lots they are capable of executing within this period and that in function of materials as well as the team(s) available for the upgrade.

# Section IV. EVALUATION AND QUALIFICATION CRITERIA

**Evaluation criterial will be done at three different levels, which are: preliminary evaluation, technical evaluation and financial evaluation.**

Contract(s) will be awarded by Lot but multiple lots may be awarded to the same bidder.

Possible cross discounts (price discounts) will be taken into account. These cross discounts will be indicated by number of site.

All other criteria stated below are to be considered as pass / fail.

## Preliminary Evaluation Criteria

1. Bids must be properly sealed and submitted before the bid deadline;
2. Bid must be registered on the register before submission into the bid box;
3. Availability of a Company profile;
4. All Bidders must include copies of tax clearance certificates for the past three years i.e. 2017,2018, 2019 & 2020 if readily available;
5. Availability of audited financial statements for the last 3 years
6. All bidders must provide evidence of at least two similar Jobs made in the past 5 years for IHVN or any other organizations;
7. All bidders must provide proof of registration with the Corporate Affairs Commission (CAC);
8. Bank Reference Letter;
9. All bidders must indicate their bid validity period. The bid validity period will be 90 days, starting from the date of deadline for submission of the bids.
10. The bid contains a signed bid form (Form V.A)
11. The bid contains a substantially complying bid guarantee.
12. The bid is substantially complete

## Eligibility and Qualification Criteria

* Eligibility

| **Criteria** | | | **Single Entity Requirements** | | **Joint Venture Requirements** | | | | | | | **Documentation** | | |
| --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- |
| **No.** | **Subject** | **Requirement** |  | | **All Members Combined** | | **Each Member** | | **Lead Partner** | | **Submission Requirements** | | |
|  | **Bank Eligibility** | Not having been declared ineligible by the Bank, as described in ITB 3.1 and 4.4 | Must meet requirement | N/A | | Must meet requirement | | N/A | | Application Submission Letter | | |

* Historical Contract Non-Performance

| **Criteria** | | | **Single Entity Requirements** | **Joint Venture Requirements** | | | | **Documentation** | |
| --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- |
| **No.** | **Subject** | **Requirement** |  | **All Members Combined** | **Each Member** | **Lead Partner** | **Submission Requirements** | |
|  | **History of Non-Performing Contracts** | Non-performance of a contract[[3]](#footnote-3) did not occur as a result of Supplier’s default since **1st January 2015**. | Must meet requirement | N/A | Must meet requirement[[4]](#footnote-4) | N/A | Form D | |
|  | **Pending Litigation** | Applicant’s financial position and prospective long-term profitability still sound according to criteria established in 3.1 below and assuming that all pending litigation will be resolved against the Applicant | Must meet requirement | N/A | Must meet requirement | N/A | Form D | |
|  | **Litigation History** | No consistent history of court/arbitral award decisions against the Bidder[[5]](#footnote-5) since **1st January 2013** | Must meet requirement | N/A | Must meet requirement | N/A | Form D | |

* Financial Situation and Performance (\*\*).

| **Criteria** | | | **Single Entity Requirements** | | **Joint Venture Requirements** | | | | **Documentation** | |
| --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- |
| **No.** | **Subject** | **Requirement** | |  | | **All Members Combined** | **Each Member** | **Lead Partner** | | **Submission Requirements** |
| **3.1** | **Average Turnover** | The average turnover of the company or JV for the last 3 years (2017, 2018, 2019) will be at least **3 times the value** for which the bidder is submitting a bid. | | Must meet requirement | | Must meet requirement | N/A | Must meet the requirement for at least 1.5 times the value. | | 1. Form D 2. Financial statements |
| **3.2** | **Profit** | Financial statements will show a profit over the last 3 years | | Must meet requirement | | N/A | Must meet requirement | Must meet requirement | | 1. Form D 2. Financial statements |
| **3.3** | **Quick or Acid-Test Ratio (\*)** |  | | Must meet requirement | | N/A | Must meet requirement | Must meet requirement | | 1. Form D 2. Financial statements |
| **3.4** | **Average debt ratio (\*\*)** | **≤ 0.8** | | Must meet requirement | | N/A | Must meet requirement | Must meet requirement | | 1. Form D 2. Financial statements |

(\*) Quick ratio = (\*\*) *The Employer reserves the right to exclude a company or consortium that meet the financial criteria if he comes to the conclusion, after more detailed horizontal and vertical analysis of the financial statements, that the company or consortium does not have a healthy financial status.*

*The Employer may accept a company or consortium that does not meet the financial criteria if after the same analysis, he comes to the conclusion that the financial status is healthy after all.*

*In both cases the decision will be motivated in detail.*

* Capacity and experience

| **Criteria** | | | **Single Entity Requirements** | **Joint Venture Requirements** | | | **Documentation** |
| --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- |
| **No.** | **Subject** | **Requirement** |  | **All Members Combined** | **Each Member** | **Lead Partner** | **Submission Requirements** |
| **4.1** | **General experience** | The company or JV will have a general experience of at least 5 years | Must meet requirement | Must meet requirement | N/A | Must meet requirement | 1. Form D |
| **4.2** | **Specific experience** | The company or JV will have at least 3 years’ experience in installations of solar energy. | Must meet requirement | Must meet requirement | N/A | Must meet requirement | 1. Form D |
| The company or JV has successfully executed at least 2 contracts of similar nature and value as the one they are bidding for, over the last 5 years. | Must meet requirement | Must meet requirement | N/A | Must meet requirement for at least 1 project as a single entity or lead partner. | 1. Form D |
| **4.3** | **Key staff** | The Company or JV will assign sufficient personnel (in function of the number of lot bidding for) to execute the contract within the time indicated in ITB 46.1:  The minimum requirements are:  Building engineer: Minimum of Five years hands on experience (per lot) with qualification of at least minimum of BSc. or its equivalent.  Project coordinator: With a min of 5 years hands on experience with qualification of at least minimum of BSc. or its equivalent. |  |  |  |  | 1. Form E |

# Section V Returnable Bidding Forms

1. Letter of Bid – Bid submission form

|  |
| --- |
| *INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS: DELETE THIS BOX ONCE YOU HAVE COMPLETED THE DOCUMENT*  *The Bidder must prepare this Letter of Bid on stationery with its letterhead clearly showing the Bidder’s complete name and business address.*  *Note: All italicized text is to help Bidders in preparing this form.* |

**Date of this Bid submission**: *[insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid submission]*

**RFB No.:** [*insert number of RFB process*]

**Request for Bid No**.: [*insert identification*]

**Alternative No.**:[*insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative*]

To: **[*insert complete name of Purchaser*]**

1. **No reservations:** We have examined and have no reservations to the bidding document, including Addenda issued in accordance with Instructions to Bidders (ITB 19);
2. **Eligibility**: We meet the eligibility requirements and have no conflict of interest in accordance with ITB 3;
3. **Bid/Proposal-Securing Declaration**: We have not been suspended nor declared ineligible by the Purchaser based on execution of a Bid/Proposal Securing Declaration in the Purchaser’s Country in accordance with ITB 4;
4. **Conformity:** We offer to supply in conformity with the bidding document and in accordance with the Delivery Schedules specified in the Schedule of Requirements the following Goods: [*insert a brief description of the Goods and Related Services*];
5. **Bid Price**: The total price of our Bid, excluding any discounts offered in item (f) below is:

Option 1, in case of one lot: Total price is: [*insert the total price of the Bid in words and figures, indicating the various amounts and the respective currencies*];

Or

Option 2, in case of multiple lots: (a) Total price of each lot [*insert the total price of each lot in words and figures, indicating the various amounts and the respective currencies*]; and (b) Total price of all lots (sum of all lots) [*insert the total price of all lots in words and figures, indicating the various amounts and the respective currencies*];

1. **Discounts**: The discounts offered and the methodology for their application are:

(i) The discounts offered are: [*Specify in detail each discount offered.*]

(ii) The exact method of calculations to determine the net price after application of discounts is shown below: [*Specify in detail the method that shall be used to apply the discounts*];

1. **Bid Validity Period**: Our Bid shall be valid for the period specified in BDS 16 (as amended, if applicable) from the date fixed for the Bid submission deadline specified in BDS 22.1 (as amended, if applicable), and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration of that period;
2. **Performance Security**: If our Bid is accepted, we commit to obtain a performance security in accordance with the bidding document;
3. **One Bid per Bidder**: We are not submitting any other Bid(s) as an individual Bidder, and weare not participating in any other Bid(s) as a Joint Venture member, or as a subcontractor, and meet the requirements of ITB 4, other than alternative Bids submitted in accordance with ITB 20;
4. **Suspension and Debarment**: We, along with any of our subcontractors, suppliers, consultants, manufacturers, or service providers for any part of the contract, are not subject to, and not controlled by any entity or individual that is subject to, a temporary suspension or a debarment imposed by Multinational Donor Banks or a debarment imposed in accordance with the Agreement for Mutual Enforcement of Debarment Decisions between the World Bank and other development banks. Further, we are not ineligible under the Purchaser’s Country laws or official regulations or pursuant to a decision of the United Nations Security Council;
5. **State-owned enterprise or institution**: [*select the appropriate option and delete the other*] [*We are not a state-owned enterprise or institution*] / [*We are a state-owned enterprise or institution but meet the requirements of ITB 4.6*];
6. **Commissions, gratuities, fees:** We have paid, or will pay the following commissions, gratuities, or fees with respect to the Bidding process or execution of the Contract: [*insert complete name of each Recipient, its full address, the reason for which each commission or gratuity was paid and the amount and currency of each such commission or gratuity*]

|  |  |  |  |
| --- | --- | --- | --- |
| Name of Recipient | Address | Reason | Amount |
|  |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |

(If none has been paid or is to be paid, indicate “none.”)

1. **Binding Contract**: We understand that this Bid, together with your written acceptance thereof included in your Letter of Acceptance, shall constitute a binding contract between us, until a formal contract is prepared and executed;
2. **Purchaser Not Bound to Accept**: We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest evaluated cost Bid, the Most Advantageous Bid or any other Bid that you may receive; and
3. **Fraud and Corruption**: We hereby certify that we have taken steps to ensure that no person acting for us or on our behalf engages in any type of Fraud and Corruption.

**Name of the Bidder**: \*[*insert complete name of the Bidder*]

**Name of the person duly authorized to sign the Bid on behalf of the Bidder**: \*\*[*insert complete name of person duly authorized to sign the Bid*]

**Title of the person signing the Bid**: [*insert complete title of the person signing the Bid*]

**Signature of the person named above**: [*insert signature of person whose name and capacity are shown above*]

**Date signed** [*insert date of signing*] **day of** [*insert month*], [*insert year*]

**\***: In the case of the Bid submitted by a Joint Venture specify the name of the Joint Venture as Bidder.

\*\*: Person signing the Bid shall have the power of attorney given by the Bidder. The power of attorney shall be attached with the Bid Schedules.

1. Bidder Information Form

*[The Bidder shall fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated below. No alterations to its format shall be permitted and no substitutions shall be accepted.]*

Date: *[insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid submission*]

RFB No.: *[insert number of RFB process]*

Alternative No.: *[insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]*

Page \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_ of\_ \_\_\_\_\_\_ pages

|  |
| --- |
| 1. Bidder’s Name *[insert Bidder’s legal name]* |
| 2. In case of JV, legal name of each member : *[insert legal name of each member in JV]* |
| 3. Bidder’s actual or intended country of registration: *[insert actual or intended country of registration]* |
| 4. Bidder’s year of registration: *[insert Bidder’s year of registration]* |
| 5. Bidder’s Address in country of registration: *[insert Bidder’s legal address in country of registration]* |
| 6. Bidder’s Authorized Representative Information  Name: *[insert Authorized Representative’s name]*  Address: *[insert Authorized Representative’s Address]*  Telephone/Fax numbers: *[insert Authorized Representative’s telephone/fax numbers]*  Email Address: *[insert Authorized Representative’s email address]* |
| 7. Attached are copies of original documents of *[check the box(es) of the attached original documents]*  🞎 Articles of Incorporation (or equivalent documents of constitution or association), and/or documents of registration of the legal entity named above, in accordance with ITB 4.4.  🞎 In case of JV, letter of intent to form JV or JV agreement, in accordance with ITB 4.1.  🞎 In case of state-owned enterprise or institution, in accordance with ITB 4.6 documents establishing:   1. Legal and financial autonomy 2. Operation under commercial law 3. Establishing that the Bidder is not under the supervision of the Purchaser   2. Included are the organizational chart, a list of Board of Directors, and the beneficial ownership. |

1. Bidder’s JV Members Information Form

*[The Bidder shall fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated below. The following table shall be filled in for the Bidder and for each member of a Joint Venture]].*

Date: *[insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid submission*]

RFB No.: *[insert number of Bidding process]*

Alternative No.: *[insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]*

Page \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_ of\_ \_\_\_\_\_\_ pages

|  |
| --- |
| 1. Bidder’s Name: *[insert Bidder’s legal name]* |
| 2. Bidder’s JV Member’s name: *[insert JV’s Member legal name]* |
| 3. Bidder’s JV Member’s country of registration: *[insert JV’s Member country of registration]* |
| 4. Bidder’s JV Member’s year of registration: *[insert JV’s Member year of registration]* |
| 5. Bidder’s JV Member’s legal address in country of registration: *[insert JV’s Member legal address in country of registration]* |
| 6. Bidder’s JV Member’s authorized representative information  Name: *[insert name of JV’s Member authorized representative]*  Address: *[insert address of JV’s Member authorized representative]*  Telephone/Fax numbers: *[insert telephone/fax numbers of JV’s Member authorized representative]*  Email Address: *[insert email address of JV’s Member authorized representative]* |
| 7. Attached are copies of original documents of *[check the box(es) of the attached original documents]*  🞎 Articles of Incorporation (or equivalent documents of constitution or association), and/or registration documents of the legal entity named above, in accordance with ITB 4.4.  🞎 In case of a state-owned enterprise or institution, documents establishing legal and financial autonomy, operation in accordance with commercial law, and that they are not under the supervision of the Purchaser, in accordance with ITB 4.6.  8. Included are the organizational chart, a list of Board of Directors, and the beneficial ownership. |

1. Eligibility and Qualification Form

|  |  |  |  |
| --- | --- | --- | --- |
| Name of Bidder: | *[Insert Name of Bidder]* | Date: | *Select date* |
| ITB reference: | [Insert ITB Reference Number] | | |

If JV/Consortium/Association, to be completed by each partner.

**History of Non- Performing Contracts**

|  |  |  |  |
| --- | --- | --- | --- |
| ☐ Non-performing contracts did not occur during the last 3 years | | | |
| ☐ Contract(s) not performed in the last 3 years | | | |
| Year | Non- performed  portion of contract | Contract Identification | Total Contract Amount |
|  |  | Name of Client:  Address of Client:  Reason(s) for non-performance: |  |

**Litigation History (including pending litigation)**

|  |  |  |  |
| --- | --- | --- | --- |
| ☐ No litigation history for the last 3 years | | | |
| ☐ Litigation History as indicated below | | | |
| Year of dispute | Amount in dispute | Contract Identification | Total Contract Amount |
|  |  | Name of Client:  Address of Client:  Matter in dispute:  Party who initiated the dispute:  Status of dispute:  Party awarded if resolved: |  |

**Previous relevant experience:**

*Using the form below, indicate the information requested for each relevant assignment (similar to the current assignment) that your company/organisation, as well as each partner, has obtained by contract, either individually as a single company or as one of the main partners of an association to provide services similar to those requested in this assignment. Use a maximum of 20 pages].*

*The Consultant shall provide the full address for each client mentioned (contact person, fax and telephone numbers and e-mail address). These addresses will be used for verification by the Contracting Authority. Assignments with false or incomplete addresses which do not allow the Contracting Authority to carry out the assignment verification will not be considered for evaluation.*

*The assignments presented must be accurate, and any declaration of false assignments will result in the rejection of the Consultant's proposal.*

|  |  |  |
| --- | --- | --- |
| Name of contract: | | Contract Value (Indicate Currency): |
| Country:  Location: | | Duration (months): |
| Name of contracting authority: | | Total number of staff/months involved: |
| Address: | | Value of the contract executed by your company: |
| Start date: |  | Number of person-months executed by associated companies: |
| End date: |  |
| Name of associated companies (if any): |  |  |
| Description of the project: | | |
| Description of the goods / works / services delivered by your company: | | |

**Financial information:**

|  |  |  |  |
| --- | --- | --- | --- |
| Financial information  (in NGN # equivalent) | Historic information for the last 3 years | | |
|  | Year -1 | Year -2 | Year -3 |
|  | *Information from Balance Sheet* | | |
| Total Assets (TA) |  |  |  |
| Total Liabilities (TL) |  |  |  |
| Current Assets (CA) |  |  |  |
| Current Liabilities (CL) |  |  |  |
| Quick test ratio |  |  |  |
| Average debt ratio |  |  |  |
|  | *Information from Income Statement* | | |
| Total / Gross Revenue (Turnover) |  |  |  |
| Profits Before Taxes (PBT) |  |  |  |
| Net Profit |  |  |  |

☐ Attached are copies of the audited financial statements (balance sheets, including all related notes, and income statements) for the years required above complying with the following condition:

1. Must reflect the financial situation of the Bidder or party to a JV, and not sister or parent companies;
2. Historic financial statements must be audited by a certified public accountant;
3. Historic financial statements must correspond to accounting periods already completed and audited. No statements for partial periods shall be accepted.
4. CVs of Key Personnel

*The Consultant does not have the obligation to use this standard format as long as the required information is submitted. EU, WB or ADB formats are excellent with the addition of the “Adequacy for the assignment”*

|  |  |
| --- | --- |
| **Position Title and No.** | {e.g., K-1, TEAM LEADER} |
| **Name of Expert:** | {Insert full name} |
| **Date of Birth:** | {day/month/year} |
| **Country of Citizenship/Residence** |  |

**Education:** {List college/university or other specialized education, giving names of educational institutions, dates attended, degree(s)/diploma(s) obtained}

**\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_**

**Employment record relevant to the assignment:** {Starting with present position, list in reverse order. Please provide dates, name of employing organization, titles of positions held, types of activities performed and location of the assignment, and contact information of previous clients and employing organization(s) who can be contacted for references. Past employment that is not relevant to the assignment does not need to be included.}

|  |  |  |  |
| --- | --- | --- | --- |
| **Period** | **Employing organization and your title/position. Contact information for references** | **Country** | **Summary of activities performed relevant to the Assignment** |
| [e.g., May 2005-present] | [e.g., Ministry of ……, advisor/consultant to…  For references: Tel…………/e-mail……; Mr. Hbbbbb, deputy minister] |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |

Membership in Professional Associations and Publications: \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_

Language Skills (indicate only languages in which you can work): \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_

1. Work Schedule and planning for deliverables

|  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- |
| **N°** | **Deliverables** 1 **(D-..)** | **Months** | | | | | | | | | | | |
| **1** | **2** | **3** | **4** | **5** | **6** | **7** | **8** | **9** | **.....** | **n** | **TOTAL** |
| **D-1** | {e.g., Deliverable #1: Report A |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
|  | 1) data collection |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
|  | 2) drafting |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
|  | 3) inception report |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
|  | 4) incorporating comments |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
|  | 5) delivery of final report to Client} |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| **D-2** | {e.g., Deliverable #2:...............} |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |

1 List the deliverables with the breakdown for activities required to produce them and other benchmarks such as the Client’s approvals. For phased assignments, indicate the activities, delivery of reports, and benchmarks separately for each phase.

2 Duration of activities shall be indicated in a form of a bar chart.

3. Include a legend, if necessary, to help read the chart.

1. Form of Bid Security

**(Bank Guarantee)**

*[The bank shall fill in this Bank Guarantee Form in accordance with the instructions indicated.]*

*[Guarantor letterhead or SWIFT identifier code]*

**Beneficiary:** *[Purchaser to insert its name and address]*

**RFB No.:** *[Purchaser to insert reference number for the Request for Bids]*

**Alternative No***.: [Insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]*

**Date:** *[Insert date of issue]*

**BID GUARANTEE No.:** *[Insert guarantee reference number]*

**Guarantor:** *[Insert name and address of place of issue, unless indicated in the letterhead]*

We have been informed that \_\_\_\_\_\_ *[insert name of the Bidder, which in the case of a joint venture shall be the name of the joint venture (whether legally constituted or prospective) or the names of all members thereof]* (hereinafter called "the Applicant") has submitted or will submit to the Beneficiary its Bid (hereinafter called "the Bid") for the execution of \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_ under Request for Bids No. \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_ \_ (“the RFB”).

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the Beneficiary’s conditions, Bids must be supported by a Bid guarantee.

At the request of the Applicant, we, as Guarantor, hereby irrevocably undertake to pay the Beneficiary any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_ (\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_) upon receipt by us of the Beneficiary’s complying demand, supported by the Beneficiary’s statement, whether in the demand itself or a separate signed document accompanying or identifying the demand, stating that either the Applicant:

(a) has withdrawn its Bid during the period of Bid validity set forth in the Applicant’s Letter of Bid (“the Bid Validity Period”), or any extension thereto provided by the Applicant; or

(b) having been notified of the acceptance of its Bid by the Beneficiary during the Bid Validity Period or any extension thereto provided by the Applicant, (i) has failed to sign the contract agreement, or (ii) has failed to furnish the performance security, in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders (“ITB”) of the Beneficiary’s bidding document.

This guarantee will expire: (a) if the Applicant is the successful Bidder, upon our receipt of copies of the Contract agreement signed by the Applicant and the performance security issued to the Beneficiary in relation to such Contract agreement; or (b) if the Applicant is not the successful Bidder, upon the earlier of (i) our receipt of a copy of the Beneficiary’s notification to the Applicant of the results of the Bidding process; or (ii)twenty-eight days after the end of the Bid Validity Period.

Consequently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received by us at the office indicated above on or before that date.

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees (URDG) 2010 Revision, ICC Publication No. 758.

**\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_**

*[Signature(s)]*

***Note: All italicized text is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.***

| **No** | **Goods and Services** | **Technical Specifications (Please refer to the BOQ for more information per facility)** |
| --- | --- | --- |
| 1 | Lab stool | lab stool with leather coverage back and arm complete with rollers   1. Steel structure and base, sturdy and durable to use. 2. Sponge padded PU leather seat cushion, comfortable to seat. 3. Height adjustable by pneumatic gas lift. 4. Ergonomic backrest design, with foot rest to relax. 5. Black colour. |
| 2 | Work top | Supply and fix (Acid proof) Soft MDF with 0.5mm edging Base unit, water resistant chipboard and 0.7mm acid and Alkaline resistant HPL laminated Worktop elevated on VOLPATO adjustable legs complete with accessories |
| 3 | Wall Finishes | Painting render; prepare and apply two finishing coats emulsion paint to include screeding (generally) to include creation of hatch |
| 4 | 5KVA Generator | Basic petrol power generator |
| 5 | Windows | Make good window where necessary |
| 6 | Door | Make good Door protectors where necessary |
| 7 | Electrical | Make good electrical fittings within the laboratory space |
| 8 | Mechanical | Make good mechanical fittings and provide accessories where necessary |

## List of Goods and Related Services - Technical Specifications.

Each location will be provided with the following (facility upgrade material and services):

**For all equipment listed in the above tables, the bidder will provide in his bid:**

* 1. **The Brand and type of the equipment**
  2. **A leaflet (documentation) of the equipment**

**Upon delivery, all equipment will be accompanied with a user manual in the English language.**

# Section VII. GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT (GCC)

|  |  |
| --- | --- |
| 1. Introduction | * 1. The following words and expressions shall have the meanings hereby assigned to them:  1. “Contract” means the Contract Agreement entered into between the Purchaser and the Supplier, together with the Contract Documents referred to therein, including all attachments, appendices, and all documents incorporated by reference therein. 2. “Contract Documents” means the documents listed in the Contract Agreement, including any amendments thereto. 3. “Contract Price” means the price payable to the Supplier as specified in the Contract Agreement, subject to such additions and adjustments thereto or deductions therefrom, as may be made pursuant to the Contract 4. “Day” means calendar day 5. “Completion” means the fulfilment of the Related Services by the Supplier in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Contract. 6. “GCC” means the General Conditions of Contract 7. “Goods” means all the commodities, material, equipment, and/or other materials that the Supplier is required to supply to the Purchaser under the Contract 8. “Purchaser’s Country” is the country specified in the SCC 9. “Purchaser” means the entity purchasing the Goods and Related Services, as specified in the SCC 10. “Related Services” means the services incidental to the supply of the goods, such as insurance, installation, training and initial maintenance and other such obligations of the Supplier under the Contract 11. “BDS” means Bid Data Sheet 12. “SCC” means Special Conditions of Contract. 13. “Subcontractor” means any person, private or government entity, or a combination of the above, to whom any part of the Goods to be supplied or execution of any part of the Related Services is subcontracted by the Supplier 14. “Supplier” means the person, private or government entity, or a combination of the above, who’s Bid to perform the Contract has been accepted by the Purchaser and is named as such in the Contract Agreement 15. “The Project Site, means the place named in the SCC. |
| 1. Contract Documents | * 1. Subject to the order of precedence set forth in the Contract Agreement, all documents forming the Contract (and all parts thereof) are intended to be correlative, complementary, and mutually explanatory. The Contract Agreement shall be read as a whole. |
| 1. Fraud and Corruption | * 1. IHVN requires compliance with the Institute’s Anti-Corruption Guidelines and its prevailing sanctions policies and procedures as set forth in the in section 2 above |
| * 1. The Purchaser requires the Supplier to disclose any commissions or fees that may have been paid or are to be paid to agents or any other party with respect to the Bidding process or execution of the Contract. The information disclosed must include at least the name and address of the agent or other party, the amount and currency, and the purpose of the commission, gratuity or fee. |
| 1. Interpretation | * 1. If the context so requires it, singular means plural and vice versa |
| * 1. INCOTERMS  1. Unless inconsistent with any provision of the Contract, the meaning of any trade term and the rights and obligations of parties thereunder shall be as prescribed by INCOTERMS specified in the **SCC** 2. The terms CPT and other similar terms, when used, shall be governed by the rules prescribed in the current edition of Incoterms specified in the **SCC** and published by the International Chamber of Commerce |
| * 1. Entire Agreement   The Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the Purchaser and the Supplier and supersedes all communications, negotiations and agreements (whether written or oral) of the parties with respect thereto made prior to the date of Contract. |
| * 1. Amendment   No amendment or other variation of the Contract shall be valid unless it is in writing, is dated, expressly refers to the Contract, and is signed by a duly authorized representative of each party thereto. |
| * 1. Non waiver  1. Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 4.5(b) below, no relaxation, forbearance, delay, or indulgence by either party in enforcing any of the terms and conditions of the Contract or the granting of time by either party to the other shall prejudice, affect, or restrict the rights of that party under the Contract, neither shall any waiver by either party of any breach of Contract operate as waiver of any subsequent or continuing breach of Contract. 2. Any waiver of a party’s rights, powers, or remedies under the Contract must be in writing, dated, and signed by an authorized representative of the party granting such waiver, and must specify the right and the extent to which it is being waived |
| * 1. Severability   If any provision or condition of the Contract is prohibited or rendered invalid or unenforceable, such prohibition, invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provisions and conditions of the Contract. |
| 1. Language | * 1. The Contract as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the Contract exchanged by the Supplier and the Purchaser, shall be written in the language specified in the **SCC**. Supporting documents and printed literature that are part of the Contract may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages in the language specified, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Contract, this translation shall govern |
| * 1. The Supplier shall bear all costs of translation to the governing language and all risks of the accuracy of such translation, for documents provided by the Supplier. |
| 1. Joint Venture, Consortium or Association | * 1. If the Supplier is a joint venture, consortium, or association, all of the parties shall be jointly and severally liable to the Purchaser for the fulfilment of the provisions of the Contract and shall designate one party to act as a leader with authority to bind the joint venture, consortium, or association. The composition or the constitution of the joint venture, consortium, or association shall not be altered without the prior consent of the Purchaser. |
| 1. Eligibility | * 1. A Supplier or Subcontractor shall be deemed to have the nationality of a country if it is a citizen or constituted, incorporated, or registered, and operates in conformity with the provisions of the laws of that country. |
| * 1. All Goods and Related Services to be supplied under the Contract and financed by the Institute shall have their origin in Eligible Countries. For the purpose of this Clause, origin means the country where the goods have been grown, mined, cultivated, produced, manufactured, or processed; or through manufacture, processing, or assembly, another commercially recognized article results that differs substantially in its basic characteristics from its components. |
| 1. Notices | * 1. Any notice given by one party to the other pursuant to the Contract shall be in writing to the address specified in the **SCC**. The term “in writing” means communicated in written form with proof of receipt. |
| * 1. A notice shall be effective when delivered or on the notice’s effective date, whichever is later. |
| 1. Governing Law | * 1. The Contract shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the Purchaser’s Country, unless otherwise specified in the **SCC**. |
| * 1. Throughout the execution of the Contract, the Supplier shall comply with the import of goods and services prohibitions in the Purchaser’s Country when as a matter of law or official regulations, the purchaser’s country prohibits commercial relations with that country. |
| 1. Settlement of Disputes | * 1. The Purchaser and the Supplier shall make every effort to resolve amicably by direct informal negotiation any disagreement or dispute arising between them under or in connection with the Contract |
| * 1. If, after twenty-eight (28) days, the parties have failed to resolve their dispute or difference by such mutual consultation, then either the Purchaser or the Supplier may give notice to the other party of its intention to commence arbitration, as hereinafter provided, as to the matter in dispute, and no arbitration in respect of this matter may be commenced unless such notice is given. Any dispute or difference in respect of which a notice of intention to commence arbitration has been given in accordance with this Clause shall be finally settled by arbitration. Arbitration may be commenced prior to or after delivery of the Goods under the Contract. Arbitration proceedings shall be conducted in accordance with the rules of procedure specified in the **SCC**. |
| * 1. Notwithstanding any reference to arbitration herein,  1. the parties shall continue to perform their respective obligations under the Contract unless they otherwise agree; and 2. the Purchaser shall pay the Supplier any monies due the Supplier. |
| 1. Inspections and Audit by the Institute | * 1. The Supplier shall keep, and shall make all reasonable efforts to cause its Subcontractors to keep, accurate and systematic accounts and records in respect of the Goods in such form and details as will clearly identify relevant time changes and costs |
| * 1. Supplier shall permit and shall cause its subcontractors and sub-consultants to permit, the Institute and/or persons appointed by the Institute to inspect the Site and/or the accounts and records relating to the procurement process, selection and/or contract execution, and to have such accounts and records audited by auditors appointed by the Institute if requested by the Institute. The Supplier’s and its Subcontractors’ and sub-consultants’ attention is drawn to Institute’s right which provides, inter alia, that acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Institute’s inspection and audit rights constitute a prohibited practice subject to contract termination (as well as to a determination of ineligibility pursuant to the Institute’s prevailing sanctions procedures). |
| 1. Scope of Supply | * 1. The Goods and Related Services to be supplied shall be as specified in the Technical Specifications. |
| 1. Delivery and Documents | * 1. Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 33.1, the Delivery of the Goods and Completion of the Related Services shall be in accordance with the Delivery and Completion Schedule specified in the Schedule of Requirements. The details of shipping and other documents to be furnished by the Supplier are specified in the **SCC**. |
| 1. Supplier’s Responsibilities | * 1. The Supplier shall supply all the Goods and Related Services included in the Technical Specification and the Delivery and Completion Schedule, as per GCC Clause 13. |
| 1. Contract Price | * 1. Prices charged by the Supplier for the Goods supplied and the Related Services performed under the Contract shall not vary from the prices quoted by the Supplier in its Bid, with the exception of any price adjustments authorized in the **SCC**. |
| 1. Terms of Payment | * 1. The Contract Price, including any Advance Payments, if applicable, shall be paid as specified in the **SCC** |
| * 1. The Supplier’s request for payment shall be made to the Purchaser in writing, accompanied by invoices describing, as appropriate, the Goods delivered and Related Services performed, and by the documents submitted pursuant to GCC Clause 13 and upon fulfilment of all other obligations stipulated in the Contract |
| * 1. Payments shall be made promptly by the Purchaser, but in no case later than ten (10) working days after submission of an invoice or request for payment by the Supplier, and after the Purchaser has accepted it. |
| * 1. The currencies in which payments shall be made to the Supplier under this Contract shall be those in which the Bid price is expressed. |
| * 1. In the event that the Purchaser fails to pay the Supplier any payment by its due date or within the period set forth in the **SCC**, the Purchaser shall pay interest as specified in the **SCC**. |
| 1. Taxes and Duties | * 1. For goods manufactured outside the Purchaser’s Country, the Supplier shall be entirely responsible for all taxes, stamp duties, license fees, and other such levies imposed outside the Purchaser’s Country |
| * 1. For goods Manufactured within the Purchaser’s Country, the Supplier shall be entirely responsible for all taxes, duties, license fees, etc., incurred until delivery of the contracted Goods to the Purchaser. |
| * 1. If any tax exemptions, reductions, allowances or privileges may be available to the Supplier in the Purchaser’s Country, the Purchaser shall use its best efforts to enable the Supplier to benefit from any such tax savings to the maximum allowable extent. |
| 1. Performance Security | * 1. If required as specified in the **SCC**, the Supplier shall, within twenty-eight (28) days of the notification of contract award, provide a performance security for the performance of the Contract in the amount specified in the **SCC** |
| * 1. The proceeds of the Performance Security shall be payable to the Purchaser as compensation for any loss resulting from the Supplier’s failure to complete its obligations under the Contract. |
| * 1. As specified in the **SCC**, the Performance Security, if required, shall be denominated in the currency(ies) of the Contract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Purchaser; and shall be in one of the format stipulated by the Purchaser in the **SCC**, or in another format acceptable to the Purchaser |
| * 1. The Performance Security shall be discharged by the Purchaser and returned to the Supplier not later than twenty-eight (28) days following the date of Completion of the Supplier’s performance obligations under the Contract, including any warranty obligations, unless specified otherwise in the **SCC**. |
| 1. Copyright | * 1. The copyright in all drawings, documents, and other materials containing data and information furnished to the Purchaser by the Supplier herein shall remain vested in the Supplier, or, if they are furnished to the Purchaser directly or through the Supplier by any third party, including suppliers of materials, the copyright in such materials shall remain vested in such third party |
| 1. Confidential Information | * 1. The Purchaser and the Supplier shall keep confidential and shall not, without the written consent of the other party hereto, divulge to any third party any documents, data, or other information furnished directly or indirectly by the other party hereto in connection with the Contract, whether such information has been furnished prior to, during or following completion or termination of the Contract. Notwithstanding the above, the Supplier may furnish to its Subcontractor such documents, data, and other information it receives from the Purchaser to the extent required for the Subcontractor to perform its work under the Contract, in which event the Supplier shall obtain from such Subcontractor an undertaking of confidentiality similar to that imposed on the Supplier under GCC Clause 20. |
| * 1. The Purchaser shall not use such documents, data, and other information received from the Supplier for any purposes unrelated to the contract. Similarly, the Supplier shall not use such documents, data, and other information received from the Purchaser for any purpose other than the performance of the Contract |
| * 1. The obligation of a party under GCC Sub-Clauses 20.1 and 20.2 above, however, shall not apply to information that: * the Purchaser or Supplier need to share with the institutions participating in the financing of the Contract; * now or hereafter enters the public domain through no fault of that party; * can be proven to have been possessed by that party at the time of disclosure and which was not previously obtained, directly or indirectly, from the other party; or * otherwise lawfully becomes available to that party from a third party that has no obligation of confidentiality |
| * 1. The above provisions of GCC Clause 20 shall not in any way modify any undertaking of confidentiality given by either of the parties hereto prior to the date of the Contract in respect of the Supply or any part thereof |
| * 1. The provisions of GCC Clause 20 shall survive completion or termination, for whatever reason, of the Contract. |
| 1. Subcontracting | * 1. The Supplier shall notify the Purchaser in writing of all subcontracts awarded under the Contract if not already specified in the Bid. Such notification, in the original Bid or later shall not relieve the Supplier from any of its obligations, duties, responsibilities, or liability under the Contract |
| * 1. Subcontracts shall comply with the provisions of GCC Clauses 3 and 7. |
| 1. Specifications and Standards | * 1. Technical Specifications and Drawings:  1. The Goods and Related Services supplied under this Contract shall conform to the technical specifications and standards mentioned in **Technical specifications** and, when no applicable standard is mentioned, the standard shall be equivalent or superior to the official standards whose application is appropriate to the Goods’ country of origin 2. The Supplier shall be entitled to disclaim responsibility for any design, data, drawing, specification or other document, or any modification thereof provided or designed by or on behalf of the Purchaser, by giving a notice of such disclaimer to the Purchaser 3. Wherever references are made in the Contract to codes and standards in accordance with which it shall be executed, the edition or the revised version of such codes and standards shall be those specified in the Technical Specifications. During Contract execution, any changes in any such codes and standards shall be applied only after approval by the Purchaser and shall be treated in accordance with GCC Clause 33. |
| 1. Packing and Documents | * 1. The Supplier shall provide such packing of the Goods as is required to prevent their damage or deterioration during transit to their final destination, as indicated in the Contract. During transit, the packing shall be sufficient to withstand, without limitation, rough handling and exposure to extreme temperatures, salt and precipitation, and open storage. Packing case size and weights shall take into consideration, where appropriate, the remoteness of the goods’ final destination and the absence of heavy handling facilities at all points in transit. |
| * 1. The packing, marking, and documentation within and outside the packages shall comply strictly with such special requirements as shall be expressly provided for in the Contract, including additional requirements, if any, specified in the **SCC**, and in any other instructions ordered by the Purchaser. |
| 1. Insurance | * 1. Unless otherwise specified in the **SCC**, the Goods supplied under the Contract shall be fully insured—in a freely convertible currency from an eligible country—against loss or damage incidental to manufacture or acquisition, transportation, storage, and delivery, in accordance with the applicable Incoterms or in the manner specified in the **SCC**. |
| 1. Transportation and Incidental Services | * 1. Unless otherwise specified in the **SCC**, responsibility for arranging transportation of the Goods shall be in accordance with the specified INCOTERMS. |
| * 1. The Supplier may be required to provide any or all of the following services, including additional services, if any, specified in **SCC**:  1. performance or supervision of on-site assembly and/or start‑up of the supplied Goods; 2. furnishing of tools required for assembly and/or maintenance of the supplied Goods; 3. furnishing of a detailed operations and maintenance manual for each appropriate unit of the supplied Goods; 4. performance or supervision or maintenance and/or repair of the supplied Goods, for a period of time agreed by the parties, provided that this service shall not relieve the Supplier of any warranty obligations under this Contract; and 5. training of the Purchaser’s personnel, at the Supplier’s plant and/or on-site, in assembly, start-up, operation, maintenance, and/or repair of the supplied Goods |
| * 1. Prices charged by the Supplier for incidental services, if not included in the Contract Price for the Goods, shall be agreed upon in advance by the parties and shall not exceed the prevailing rates charged to other parties by the Supplier for similar services |
| 1. Inspections and Tests | * 1. The Supplier shall at its own expense and at no cost to the Purchaser carry out all such tests and/or inspections of the Goods and Related Services as are specified in the **SCC** |
| * 1. The inspections and tests may be conducted on the premises of the Supplier or its Subcontractor, at point of delivery, and/or at the Goods’ final destination, or in another place in the Purchaser’s Country as specified in the SCC. Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 26.3, if conducted on the premises of the Supplier or its Subcontractor, all reasonable facilities and assistance, including access to drawings and production data, shall be furnished to the inspectors at no charge to the Purchaser. |
| * 1. The Purchaser or its designated representative shall be entitled to attend the tests and/or inspections referred to in GCC Sub-Clause 26.2, provided that the Purchaser bear all of its own costs and expenses incurred in connection with such attendance including, but not limited to, all traveling and board and lodging expenses. |
| * 1. Whenever the Supplier is ready to carry out any such test and inspection, it shall give a reasonable advance notice, including the place and time, to the Purchaser. The Supplier shall obtain from any relevant third party or manufacturer any necessary permission or consent to enable the Purchaser or its designated representative to attend the test and/or inspection |
| * 1. The Purchaser may require the Supplier to carry out any test and/or inspection not required by the Contract but deemed necessary to verify that the characteristics and performance of the Goods comply with the technical specifications codes and standards under the Contract, provided that the Supplier’s reasonable costs and expenses incurred in the carrying out of such test and/or inspection shall be added to the Contract Price. Further, if such test and/or inspection impedes the progress of manufacturing and/or the Supplier’s performance of its other obligations under the Contract, due allowance will be made in respect of the Delivery Dates and Completion Dates and the other obligations so affected |
| * 1. The Supplier shall provide the Purchaser with a report of the results of any such test and/or inspection |
| * 1. The Purchaser may reject any Goods or any part thereof that fail to pass any test and/or inspection or do not conform to the specifications. The Supplier shall either rectify or replace such rejected Goods or parts thereof or make alterations necessary to meet the specifications at no cost to the Purchaser, and shall repeat the test and/or inspection, at no cost to the Purchaser, upon giving a notice pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 26.4 |
| * 1. The Supplier agrees that neither the execution of a test and/or inspection of the Goods or any part thereof, nor the attendance by the Purchaser or its representative, nor the issue of any report pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 26.6, shall release the Supplier from any warranties or other obligations under the Contract. |
| 1. Liquidated Damages | * 1. Except as provided under GCC Clause 32, if the Supplier fails to deliver any or all of the Goods by the Date(s) of delivery or perform the Related Services within the period specified in the Contract, the Purchaser may without prejudice to all its other remedies under the Contract, deduct from the Contract Price, as liquidated damages, a sum equivalent to the percentage specified in the **SCC** of the delivered price of the delayed Goods or unperformed Services for each week or part thereof of delay until actual delivery or performance, up to a maximum deduction of the percentage specified in those **SCC**. Once the maximum is reached, the Purchaser may terminate the Contract pursuant to GCC Clause 35. |
| 1. Warranty | * 1. The Supplier warrants that all the Goods are new, unused, and of the most recent or current models, and that they incorporate all recent improvements in design and materials, unless provided otherwise in the Contra |
| * 1. Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 22.1(b), the Supplier further warrants that the Goods shall be free from defects arising from any act or omission of the Supplier or arising from design, materials, and workmanship, under normal use in the conditions prevailing in the country of final destination |
| * 1. Unless otherwise specified in the **SCC** the warranty shall remain valid for twelve (12) months after the Goods, or any portion thereof as the case may be, have been delivered to and accepted at the final destination indicated in the **SCC**, or for eighteen (18) months after the date of shipment from the port or place of loading in the country of origin, whichever period concludes earlier |
| * 1. The Purchaser shall give notice to the Supplier stating the nature of any such defects together with all available evidence thereof, promptly following the discovery thereof. The Purchaser shall afford all reasonable opportunity for the Supplier to inspect such defects |
| * 1. Upon receipt of such notice, the Supplier shall, within the period specified in the purchaser’s feedback, expeditiously repair or replace the defective Goods or parts thereof, at no cost to the Purchaser |
| * 1. If having been notified, the Supplier fails to remedy the defect within the period specified in the feedback, the Purchaser may proceed to take within a reasonable period such remedial action as may be necessary, at the Supplier’s risk and expense and without prejudice to any other rights which the Purchaser may have against the Supplier under the Contract. |
| 1. Patent Indemnity | * 1. The Supplier shall, subject to the Purchaser’s compliance with GCC Sub-Clause 29.2, indemnify and hold harmless the Purchaser and its employees and officers from and against any and all suits, actions or administrative proceedings, claims, demands, losses, damages, costs, and expenses of any nature, including attorney’s fees and expenses, which the Purchaser may suffer as a result of any infringement or alleged infringement of any patent, utility model, registered design, trademark, copyright, or other intellectual property right registered or otherwise existing at the date of the Contract by reason of:  1. the installation of the Goods by the Supplier or the use of the Goods in the country where the Site is located; and 2. the sale in any country of the products produced by the Goods   Such indemnity shall not cover any use of the Goods or any part thereof other than for the purpose indicated by or to be reasonably inferred from the Contract, neither any infringement resulting from the use of the Goods or any part thereof, or any products produced thereby in association or combination with any other equipment, plant, or materials not supplied by the Supplier, pursuant to the Contract |
| * 1. If any proceedings are brought or any claim is made against the Purchaser arising out of the matters referred to in GCC Sub-Clause 29.1, the Purchaser shall promptly give the Supplier a notice thereof, and the Supplier may at its own expense and in the Purchaser’s name conduct such proceedings or claim and any negotiations for the settlement of any such proceedings or claim. |
| * 1. If the Supplier fails to notify the Purchaser within twenty-eight (28) days after receipt of such notice that it intends to conduct any such proceedings or claim, then the Purchaser shall be free to conduct the same on its own behalf |
| * 1. The Purchaser shall, at the Supplier’s request, afford all available assistance to the Supplier in conducting such proceedings or claim, and shall be reimbursed by the Supplier for all reasonable expenses incurred in so doing |
| * 1. The Purchaser shall indemnify and hold harmless the Supplier and its employees, officers, and Subcontractors from and against any and all suits, actions or administrative proceedings, claims, demands, losses, damages, costs, and expenses of any nature, including attorney’s fees and expenses, which the Supplier may suffer as a result of any infringement or alleged infringement of any patent, utility model, registered design, trademark, copyright, or other intellectual property right registered or otherwise existing at the date of the Contract arising out of or in connection with any design, data, drawing, specification, or other documents or materials provided or designed by or on behalf of the Purchaser. |
| 1. Limitation of Liability | * 1. Except in cases of criminal negligence or wilful misconduct:  1. the Supplier shall not be liable to the Purchaser, whether in contract, tort, or otherwise, for any indirect or consequential loss or damage, loss of use, loss of production, or loss of profits or interest costs, provided that this exclusion shall not apply to any obligation of the Supplier to pay liquidated damages to the Purchaser and 2. the aggregate liability of the Supplier to the Purchaser, whether under the Contract, in tort or otherwise, shall not exceed the total Contract Price, provided that this limitation shall not apply to the cost of repairing or replacing defective equipment, or to any obligation of the supplier to indemnify the Purchaser with respect to patent infringement |
| 1. Change in Laws and Regulations | * 1. Unless otherwise specified in the Contract, if after the date of 28 days prior to date of Bid submission, any law, regulation, ordinance, order or bylaw having the force of law is enacted, promulgated, abrogated, or changed in the place of the Purchaser’s Country where the Site is located (which shall be deemed to include any change in interpretation or application by the competent authorities) that subsequently affects the Delivery Date and/or the Contract Price, then such Delivery Date and/or Contract Price shall be correspondingly increased or decreased, to the extent that the Supplier has thereby been affected in the performance of any of its obligations under the Contract. Notwithstanding the foregoing, such additional or reduced cost shall not be separately paid or credited if the same has already been accounted for in the price adjustment provisions where applicable, in accordance with GCC Clause 15. |
| 1. Force Majeure | * 1. The Supplier shall not be liable for forfeiture of its Performance Security, liquidated damages, or termination for default if and to the extent that delay in performance or other failure to perform its obligations under the Contract is the result of an event of Force Majeure |
| * 1. For purposes of this Clause, “Force Majeure” means an event or situation beyond the control of the Supplier that is not foreseeable, is unavoidable, and its origin is not due to negligence or lack of care on the part of the Supplier. Such events may include, but not be limited to, acts of the Purchaser in its sovereign capacity, wars or revolutions, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, and freight embargoes |
| * 1. If a Force Majeure situation arises, the Supplier shall promptly notify the Purchaser in writing of such condition and the cause thereof. Unless otherwise directed by the Purchaser in writing, the Supplier shall continue to perform its obligations under the Contract as far as is reasonably practical, and shall seek all reasonable alternative means for performance not prevented by the Force Majeure event. |
| 1. Change Orders and Contract Amendments | * 1. The Purchaser may at any time order the Supplier through notice in accordance GCC Clause 8, to make changes within the general scope of the Contract in any one or more of the following:  1. drawings, designs, or specifications, where Goods to be furnished under the Contract are to be specifically manufactured for the Purchaser; 2. the method of shipment or packing; 3. the place of delivery; and 4. the Related Services to be provided by the Supplier |
| * 1. If any such change causes an increase or decrease in the cost of, or the time required for, the Supplier’s performance of any provisions under the Contract, an equitable adjustment shall be made in the Contract Price or in the Delivery/Completion Schedule, or both, and the Contract shall accordingly be amended. Any claims by the Supplier for adjustment under this Clause must be asserted within twenty-eight (28) days from the date of the Supplier’s receipt of the Purchaser’s change order. |
| * 1. Prices to be charged by the Supplier for any Related Services that might be needed but which were not included in the Contract shall be agreed upon in advance by the parties and shall not exceed the prevailing rates charged to other parties by the Supplier for similar services |
| * 1. Value Engineering: The Supplier may prepare, at its own cost, a value engineering proposal at any time during the performance of the contract. The value engineering proposal shall, at a minimum, include the following:  1. the proposed change(s), and a description of the difference to the existing contract requirements; 2. a full cost/benefit analysis of the proposed change(s) including a description and estimate of costs (including life cycle costs) the Purchaser may incur in implementing the value engineering proposal; and 3. a description of any effect(s) of the change on performance/functionality 4. The Purchaser may accept the value engineering proposal if the proposal demonstrates benefits that: 5. accelerates the delivery period; or 6. reduces the Contract Price or the life cycle costs to the Purchaser; or 7. improves the quality, efficiency or sustainability of the Goods; or 8. yields any other benefits to the Purchaser without compromising the necessary functions of the Facilities.   If the value engineering proposal is approved by the Purchaser and results in:   1. a reduction of the Contract Price; the amount to be paid to the Supplier shall be the percentage specified in the **SCC** of the reduction in the Contract Price; or 2. an increase in the Contract Price; but results in a reduction in life cycle costs due to any benefit described in (a) to (d) above, the amount to be paid to the Supplier shall be the full increase in the Contract Price |
| * 1. Subject to the above, no variation in or modification of the terms of the Contract shall be made except by written amendment signed by the parties. |
| 1. Extensions of Time | * 1. If at any time during performance of the Contract, the Supplier or its subcontractors should encounter conditions impeding timely delivery of the Goods or completion of Related Services pursuant to GCC Clause 13, the Supplier shall promptly notify the Purchaser in writing of the delay, its likely duration, and its cause. As soon as practicable after receipt of the Supplier’s notice, the Purchaser shall evaluate the situation and may at its discretion extend the Supplier’s time for performance, in which case the extension shall be ratified by the parties by amendment of the Contract |
| * 1. Except in case of Force Majeure, as provided under GCC Clause 32, a delay by the Supplier in the performance of its Delivery and Completion obligations shall render the Supplier liable to the imposition of liquidated damages pursuant to GCC Clause 26, unless an extension of time is agreed upon, pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 34.1 |
| 1. Termination | * 1. Termination for default * The Purchaser, without prejudice to any other remedy for breach of Contract, by written notice of default sent to the Supplier, may terminate the Contract in whole or in part:  1. if the Supplier fails to deliver any or all of the Goods within the period specified in the Contract, or within any extension thereof granted by the Purchaser pursuant to GCC Clause 34; 2. if the Supplier fails to perform any other obligation under the Contract; or 3. if the Supplier, in the judgment of the Purchaser has engaged in Fraud and Corruption, as defined in GCC, in competing for or in executing the Contract  * In the event the Purchaser terminates the Contract in whole or in part, pursuant to GCC Clause 35.1(a), the Purchaser may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as it deems appropriate, Goods or Related Services similar to those undelivered or not performed, and the Supplier shall be liable to the Purchaser for any additional costs for such similar Goods or Related Services. However, the Supplier shall continue performance of the Contract to the extent not terminated |
| * 1. Termination for Insolvency   The Purchaser may at any time terminate the Contract by giving notice to the Supplier if the Supplier becomes bankrupt or otherwise insolvent. In such event, termination will be without compensation to the Supplier, provided that such termination will not prejudice or affect any right of action or remedy that has accrued or will accrue thereafter to the Purchaser |
| * 1. Termination for Convenience  1. The Purchaser, by notice sent to the Supplier, may terminate the Contract, in whole or in part, at any time for its convenience. The notice of termination shall specify that termination is for the Purchaser’s convenience, the extent to which performance of the Supplier under the Contract is terminated, and the date upon which such termination becomes effective 2. The Goods that are complete and ready for shipment within twenty-eight (28) days after the Supplier’s receipt of notice of termination shall be accepted by the Purchaser at the Contract terms and prices. For the remaining Goods, the Purchaser may elect: 3. to have any portion completed and delivered at the Contract terms and prices; and/or 4. to cancel the remainder and pay to the Supplier an agreed amount for partially completed Goods and Related Services and for materials and parts previously procured by the Supplier. |
| 1. Assignment | * 1. Neither the Purchaser nor the Supplier shall assign, in whole or in part, their obligations under this Contract, except with prior written consent of the other party. |
| 1. Export Restriction | * 1. Notwithstanding any obligation under the Contract to complete all export formalities, any export restrictions attributable to the Purchaser, to the country of the Purchaser, or to the use of the products/goods, systems or services to be supplied, which arise from trade regulations from a country supplying those products/goods, systems or services, and which substantially impede the Supplier from meeting its obligations under the Contract, shall release the Supplier from the obligation to provide deliveries or services, always provided however, that the Supplier can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Purchaser and of the funding agency that it has completed all formalities in a timely manner, including applying for permits, authorizations and licenses necessary for the export of the products/goods, systems or services under the terms of the Contract. Termination of the Contract on this basis shall be for the Purchaser’s convenience pursuant to Sub-Clause 35.3. |

# Section VIII. Special Conditions of Contract (SCC):

| GCC Clause | Specification |
| --- | --- |
| 1.1.h | The purchaser’s country is: **Nigeria** |
| 1.1.i | The procuring entity is: the **Institute of Human Virology Nigeria (IHVN)** |
| 1.1.o | The project sites are: **as indicated in Section IX of these bidding documents**. |
| 4.2.a | The applicable INCOTERM is: **CPT** according to **INCOTERMS version 2020** |
| 5.1 | The language is: **English** |
| 8.1 | The address for the **Supplier** is:   |  |  | | --- | --- | | Company Name: |  | | Contact person: |  | | Contact person position: |  | | Full address: |  | | E-mail address: |  |   The address for the **Purchaser** is:   |  |  | | --- | --- | | Company Name: | Institute of Human Virology Nigeria | | Contact person: | Opute Ifeoma | | Contact person position: | Deputy Director SCM/Procurement | | Full address: | Pent House, Maina Courts, Plot 252, Herbert Macaulay Way, Central Business District, Abuja, Nigeria. | | E-mail address: | bids@ihvnigeria.org | |
| 10.2 | Arbitration will be done by two independent experts. Each party will appoint one expert.  If the two arbitrators do not come to an agreement, they will appoint a third expert, whose decision will be binding. |
| 13.1 | Shipping and other documents:  Shipping:   1. Detailed list of equipment, including manufacturer, country of origin and serial numbers when applicable 2. Quality certificate(s) of the manufacturer when applicable (solar panels, inverters, …) 3. Bill of lading 4. Proof of insurance   Other:   1. Accepted Test report(s) 2. Accepted Commissioning report(s) 3. As built drawings and diagrams |
| 15.1 | No price adjustments are allowed. |
| 16.1 | Payments will be as follows:   1. Progress payment of 30 % of the contract price at contract signature and after having received a bank guarantee from a reputable bank for the same amount as well as the performance guarantee should the contractor request. 2. 65 % of the contract price after completion of the job and commissioning. 3. 5% Retention after six months of completion/commissioning |
| 16.5 | Payment will be done within 10 working days after receipt and acceptance of the invoice accompanied by the required documents (Shipping documents, Proof of job completion, commissioning and testing). |
| 18.1 | A performance guarantee, equal to 4 % of the contract value, is required. |
| 18.3 | The format of the performance guarantee shall be as in Bank Guarantee from a reputable bank for Advance Payment form below. |
| 18.4 | The value of the performance guarantee will be reduced to 25 % after the date of final payment.  It will be discharged completely after 1 year if no issues appear in the installation(s). |
| 21 | Subcontracting is not allowed unless subcontractors have already been stated in the bid and accepted by the purchaser. |
| 23.2 | Packing, marking and documentation: Packing in line with manufacturer’s packaging standard.  Marking: Shipment to be marked as “consigned to: Institute of Human Virology-Nigeria” and any other related information. |
| 24.1 | Insurance will cover 100 % of the value of the goods. |
| 25.1 | The applicable INCOTERM is “CPT place of destination as stated in Section X” |
| 25.2 | Required services apart from delivery of the goods according to the technical specifications: Installation, Testing and Commissioning and basic user training. |
| 26.1 | No test is required. |
| 27.1 | * Liquidated damages will be calculated at 0.5 % of the contract value per day of delay with a maximum of 10 % * They will be calculated lot by lot. * Once the maximum of 10 % for the entire contract has been reached, the purchaser may cancel the contract and claim the performance guarantee. |
| 28.3 | The warranty period may be different for each component of the installation. The applicable periods are indicated in the technical specifications. |
| 33.4 | No value engineering will be done |

# Section IX. Contract Forms

1. Contract Agreement

*[The successful Bidder shall fill in this form in accordance with the instructions indicated]*

THIS CONTRACT AGREEMENT is made

the *[ insert:* ***number****]* day of *[ insert:* ***month****]*, *[ insert:* ***year****]*.

BETWEEN

(1) *[ insert complete name of Purchaser ]*, a *[ insert description of type of legal entity, for example, an agency of the Ministry of .... of the Government of { insert name of Country of Purchaser }, or corporation incorporated under the laws of { insert name of Country of Purchaser } ]* and having its principal place of business at *[ insert address of Purchaser**]* (hereinafter called “the Purchaser”), and

(2) *[ insert name of Supplier**]*, a corporation incorporated under the laws of *[ insert: country of Supplier**]* and having its principal place of business at *[ insert: address of Supplier ]* (hereinafter called “the Supplier”).

WHEREAS the Purchaser invited bids for certain Goods and ancillary services, viz., *[insert brief description of Goods and Services]* and has accepted a Bid by the Supplier for the supply of those Goods and Services in the sum of *[insert Contract Price in words and figures, expressed in the Contract currency(ies)**]* (hereinafter called “the Contract Price”).

NOW THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH AS FOLLOWS:

1. In this Agreement words and expressions shall have the same meanings as are respectively assigned to them in the Conditions of Contract referred to.

2. The following documents shall constitute the Contract between the Purchaser and the Supplier, and each shall be read and construed as an integral part of the Contract:

1. This Contract Agreement
2. Special Conditions of Contract
3. General Conditions of Contract
4. Technical Requirements (including Schedule of Requirements and Technical Specifications)
5. The Supplier’s Bid and original Price Schedules
6. The Purchaser’s Notification of Award
7. *[Add here any other document(s)]*

3. This Contract shall prevail over all other Contract documents. In the event of any discrepancy or inconsistency within the Contract documents, then the documents shall prevail in the order listed above.

4. In consideration of the payments to be made by the Purchaser to the Supplier as hereinafter mentioned, the Supplier hereby covenants with the Purchaser to provide the Goods and Services and to remedy defects therein in conformity in all respects with the provisions of the Contract.

5. The Purchaser hereby covenants to pay the Supplier in consideration of the provision of the Goods and Services and the remedying of defects therein, the Contract Price or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the Contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by the Contract.

IN WITNESS whereof the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed in accordance with the laws of *[insert the name of the Contract governing law country]* on the day, month and year indicated above.

For and on behalf of the Purchaser

Signed: *[insert signature]*

in the capacity of *[ insert title or other appropriate designation ]*

in the presence of *[insert identification of official witness]*

For and on behalf of the Supplier

Signed: *[insert signature of authorized representative(s) of the Supplier]*

in the capacity of *[ insert title or other appropriate designation ]*

in the presence of *[ insert identification of official witness]*

2. Performance Security

*[The bank, as requested by the successful Bidder, shall fill in this form in accordance with the instructions indicated]*

Date: *[insert date (as day, month, and year) of Bid Submission]*

ICB No. and title*: [insert no. and title of bidding process]*

Bank’s Branch or Office: *[insert complete name of Guarantor]*

**Beneficiary:** *[insert complete name of Purchaser]*

**PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE No.:** *[insert Performance Guarantee number]*

We have been informed that *[insert complete name of Supplier]* (hereinafter called "the Supplier") has entered into Contract No*. [insert number]* dated *[insert day and month], [insert year]* with you, for the supply of *[description of Goods and related Services]* (hereinafter called "the Contract").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Contract, a Performance Guarantee is required.

At the request of the Supplier, we hereby irrevocably undertake to pay you any sum(s) not exceeding *[insert amount(s[[6]](#footnote-6)) in figures and words]* upon receipt by us of your first demand in writing declaring the Supplier to be in default under the Contract, without cavil or argument, or your needing to prove or to show grounds or reasons for your demand or the sum specified therein.

This Guarantee shall expire no later than the *[insert number]* day of *[insert month]* *[insert year]*,*[[7]](#footnote-7)* and any demand for payment under it must be received by us at this office on or before that date.

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees, ICC Publication No. 458, except that subparagraph (ii) of Sub-article 20(a) is hereby excluded.

*[signatures of authorized representatives of the bank and the Supplier]*

3. Bank Guarantee for Advance Payment

*[The bank, as requested by the successful Bidder, shall fill in this form in accordance with the instructions indicated.]*

Date: *[insert date (as day, month, and year) of Bid Submission]*

ICB No. and title: *[insert number and title of bidding process]*

*[bank’s letterhead]*

**Beneficiary:** *[insert legal name and address of Purchaser]*

**ADVANCE PAYMENT GUARANTEE No.:** *[insert Advance Payment Guarantee no.]*

We, *[insert legal name and address of bank],* have been informed that *[insert complete name and address of Supplier]* (hereinafter called "the Supplier") has entered into Contract No. *[insert number]* dated *[insert date of Agreement]* with you, for the supply of *[insert types of Goods to be delivered]* (hereinafter called "the Contract").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Contract, an advance is to be made against an advance payment guarantee.

At the request of the Supplier, we hereby irrevocably undertake to pay you any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of *[insert amount(s)[[8]](#footnote-8) in figures and words]* upon receipt by us of your first demand in writing declaring that the Supplier is in breach of its obligation under the Contract because the Supplier used the advance payment for purposes other than toward delivery of the Goods.

It is a condition for any claim and payment under this Guarantee to be made that the advance payment referred to above must have been received by the Supplier on its account *[insert number* *and domicile of the account]*

This Guarantee shall remain valid and in full effect from the date of the advance payment received by the Supplier under the Contract until *[insert date[[9]](#footnote-9)].*

This Guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees, ICC Publication No. 458.

\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_   
*[signature(s) of authorized representative(s) of the bank]*

1. Delay will end only after the joint assessment (see section VI) is carried out by both parties. [↑](#footnote-ref-1)
2. [↑](#footnote-ref-2)
3. Nonperformance, as decided by the Purchaser, shall include all contracts where (a) nonperformance was not challenged by the Supplier, including through referral to the dispute resolution mechanism under the respective contract, and (b) contracts that were so challenged but fully settled against the Supplier. Nonperformance shall not include contracts where Purchasers decision was overruled by the dispute resolution mechanism. Nonperformance must be based on all information on fully settled disputes or litigation, i.e. dispute or litigation that has been resolved in accordance with the dispute resolution mechanism under the respective contract and where all appeal instances available to the applicant have been exhausted. [↑](#footnote-ref-3)
4. This requirement also applies to contracts executed by the Applicant as JV member. [↑](#footnote-ref-4)
5. The Bidder shall provide accurate information on the related Form about any litigation or arbitration resulting from contracts completed or ongoing under its execution over the last five years. A consistent history of litigations or arbitration against the Bidder or any member of a joint venture may result in rejection of the Bid. [↑](#footnote-ref-5)
6. *The Bank shall insert the amount(s) specified in the SCC and denominated, as specified in the SCC, either in the currency(ies) of the Contract or a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Purchaser.* [↑](#footnote-ref-6)
7. *Dates established in accordance with Clause 18.4 of the General Conditions of Contract (“GCC”), taking into account any warranty obligations of the Supplier under Clause 16.2 of the GCC intended to be secured by a partial Performance Guarantee. The Purchaser should note that in the event of an extension of the time to perform the Contract, the Purchaser would need to request an extension of this Guarantee from the Bank. Such request must be in writing and must be made prior to the expiration date established in the Guarantee. In preparing this Guarantee, the Purchaser might consider adding the following text to the Form, at the end of the penultimate paragraph: “We agree to a one-time extension of this Guarantee for a period not to exceed [six months] [one year], in response to the Purchaser’s written request for such extension, such request to be presented to us before the expiry of the Guarantee.”* [↑](#footnote-ref-7)
8. *The bank shall insert the amount(s) specified in the SCC and denominated, as specified in the SCC, either in the currency(ies) of the Contract or a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Purchaser.* [↑](#footnote-ref-8)
9. *Insert the Delivery date stipulated in the Contract Delivery Schedule. The Purchaser should note that in the event of an extension of the time to perform the Contract, the Purchaser would need to request an extension of this Guarantee from the bank. Such request must be in writing and must be made prior to the expiration date established in the Guarantee. In preparing this Guarantee, the Purchaser might consider adding the following text to the Form, at the end of the penultimate paragraph: “We agree to a one-time extension of this Guarantee for a period not to exceed [six months][one year], in response to the Purchaser’s written request for such extension, such request to be presented to us before the expiry of the Guarantee.”* [↑](#footnote-ref-9)